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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Annual Profit

The audited profit attributable to the owners of the Company and earnings
per share of Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “Year”) amounted
to approximately HK$532,230,000 (2009: approximately HK$353,775,000)
and HK3.82 cents (2009: HK2.62 cents) respectively. Profit grew
significantly by 50.4%, which was mainly attributable to rapid growth in
sales driven by a series of favourable policies of the PRC government,
such as the policies of “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural Areas”, “Home
Appliances Replacement Subsidy” and “Subsidy for Energy Efficient
Appliances.” Another factor contributing to profit growth has been the
Group’s ongoing efforts to adjust its product mix, implement cost
reduction initiatives and increase the proportion of self-made key
components, which resulted a significant reduction in unit costs of sales.
However, our gross profit margin for 2010 decreased to 12.6% (2009:
approximately 14.5%), reflecting the impact of rising raw material prices
during the reporting period.

Overview

The global economy regained composure in 2010 as the impact of the
international financial crisis had gradually faded away. Major economic
entities or countries reported strong economic growth underpinned by
resurgent external demand and rising export orders. The power of
domestic consumption was fully unleashed under the economic stimulus
policies launched by the government in 2009 to counter the financial
crisis, evidenced by growth in domestic sales orders that rebounded to
the level prior to the financial crisis. Taking advantage of such favourable
conditions, the Group expanded its manufacturing bases and increased
its production capacity in a pre-emptive move to seize the opportunities
emerging in the market and further consolidate its market share. Such
expansion enabled the Group to snatch additional market share for its
principal products, which contributed to the remarkable growth in sales
and profit of the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

2010 was a crucial year marking the nation’s transition from the 11th Five
Year Plan to the 12th Five Year Plan. The Group continued to leverage
opportunities presented by the favourable government policies including
the “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural Areas”, the “Home Appliances
Replacement Subsidy” and the “Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances”
and achieved rapid sales growth by closely tracking the expanding
coverage of these policies, identifying growth potentials and optimising
the regional layout of its production bases according to their locations and
advantages for development. Meanwhile, the Group also reported rapid
growth in sales of its key strategic products, including energy-saving
refrigerator compressor motors, direct current air-conditioning motors,
commercial air-conditioning motors, high-speed series motors and vehicle
motors which were developed over the years with focused efforts in line
with the government policies that vigorously promoted adjustment of
product mix and the development of energy-saving and eco-friendly
products. Our refrigerator compressor motors have gained strong market
recognition with sales doubling on an annual basis over the years. There
is strong demand for our direct current air-conditioning motors which
shows great potential for future development. Further progress has been
achieved for our commercial air-conditioning motors in export sales to the
American markets, while commercial production has started for the high-
end products, vehicle motors and servo motors. All in all, the Group’s
initiatives in overall product mix adjustment have achieved notable results.
During the Year, the Group continued to witness positive outcome of its
efforts in organisational reforms, the development of distribution channels,
resources integration, lean production process and in-depth cost
reduction measures, which had been ongoing for some years, The
benefits of these initiatives were reflected in the dynamism of our
corporate development and enhanced operating efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Outlook

2011 marks the commencement of the 12th Five Year Plan, for which the
government has set the “Adjustment of Economic Structure and
Reinforcement of Economic Growth” as the theme of development, with
the expansion of domestic demand, strengthening of energy-saving and
eco-friendly initiatives and implementation of green development being
some of the priorities. Meanwhile, in view of government policies to
stimulate retail consumption for the expansion of domestic demand during
the time under the 12th Five Year Plan as well as continued robust
demand for home appliances in rural areas and ongoing home appliance
upgrades in the cities, we believe there will be bright prospects for the
growth and development of the industry which will present new business
opportunities for us. Moreover, the Group has consistently increased its
investment in the research and development of technology in line with its
emphasis on this aspect. In this connection, our principal self-developed
energy-saving products have been launched to the market in vigorous
response to the requirements of the government policies. Preparations are
underway for the establishment of our Shanghai Research and
Development Centre in a bid to enhance our research and development
of products embodying high-efficiency, high-technology and high value-
added. The research centre will also facilitate the expansion of our
product scope and provide a stronger foundation for the Group’s
technology upgrade and development. The Group will continue to explore
opportunities for tapping into new sectors with strong potentials for future
development, while prudently look for other suitable opportunities for
investment or merger and acquisition, which could help develop the
Group’s business range and create conditions for sustainable
development of the Group in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The development direction of the Group was set towards better alignment
with the requirements of our customers. Our refrigerator compressor
motors developed over the past years are now well received by the
market, while our commercial air-conditioning motors recorded strong
performance in export sales to the American market. Commercial
production has started for direct current air-conditioning motors and
vehicle motors. With strong input of technological and other resources,
these strategic products hold out enormous growth potential and are
expected to provide a new niche for future profit growth. Meanwhile, the
Group will step up with its development of three-phase converter motors
and DD motors (Direct Drive motors) in line with the trend of technological
changes, with a view to providing the best products to its customers.
Priority will also be given to the research and development of new
products such as servo motors through additional input of technological,
human and other resources, in order to drive progress of the development
of high value-added products.

Looking ahead, in view of the ongoing global economic recovery, stable
economic growth of the PRC and relocation of manufacturing operations
for intermediary and end products to emerging markets (such as the PRC,
India and Vietnam), the Group will pursue business growth by actively
seizing opportunities arising from the restructuring of the industry and the
requirement for products upgrade and replacement. On the back of
product mix adjustment and technology upgrade, the Group will further
extend its presence to overseas markets in a drive to become one of the
world’s leading suppliers of home-appliance motors and related solutions,
providing sustainable return to shareholders, career development
opportunities for its staff and greater value for the community.

Acknowledgement

Last but not least, | would like to express sincere gratitude to the
shareholders, customers and partners for their support, and to the
members of the Board, the management team and all employees for their
admirable work and contributions in the Group’s business development
over the past year that have assured its ongoing growth. With concerted
efforts from our staff under the able leadership of the management, | am
sure we will take on any future challenges with confidence and continue to
excel from strength to strength.

CAIl Qiwu
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company and
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$532,230,000 (2009: approximately HK$353,775,000)
and HK3.82 cents (2009: HK2.62 cents) respectively, representing growth
of approximately 50.4% as compared to the same period in last year. The
substantial increase in profit was attributable to the positive effects of
continuous favourable government policies, which stimulated the demand
for home appliances to the benefit of our industry. The Group benefited
from the further broadening in scope and increase in magnitude of such
policies and reported significant year-on-year growth in the volume and
amount of product sales for the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$7,798,886,000 (2009: approximately
HK$4,824,116,000), which represented an increase of approximately
61.7%. The Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 12.6% (2009:
approximately 14.5%), decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly due
to rise in raw material prices. Net asset value per share of the Group was
HK13.5 cents as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK8.4 cents).

Analysis of Major Business Operations

The global economy started to pick up in 2010, as the leading national
economies in the emerging markets reported strong economic growth,
while GDP growth in certain developed countries also took a positive turn.
Demand in the external markets of the industry began to show a positive
growth trend, while domestic sales continued to benefit from the
favourable government policies of “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural
Areas”, “Home Appliances Replacement Subsidy” and “Subsidy for
Energy Efficient Appliances”, such that the home appliance industry as a
whole sustained stable growth. Moreover, factors such as the rapid and
significant growth in demand for home appliances in rural areas in tandem
with the broadening of the scope of favourable government policies, the
ongoing substitution, replacement and upgrade of home appliances in
urban areas and the continued growth in property sales combined to
drive ongoing growth of the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2010, the Group worked vigorously under the direction of its strategic
planning to facilitate changes in development patterns, optimise product
mix and further materialise manufacturing potentials of principal products
for its motor business. This involved integration of competitive resources,
thorough implementation of standardisation, as well as the enhancement
of its lean production process and lean management system, which
resulted in notable improvements in our manufacturing capabilities and
operating efficiency. With increased investments in research and
development, high value-added strategic products with features in energy
conservation, eco-friendliness and low-carbon discharge were developed
at opportune timing to optimise our product mix. We actively procured the
improvement of our regional deployment of each business division, modify
marketing approaches and carry on the practice of operations on a
company basis. Sales were increased as a result of our decisive move to
capitalise on opportunities in swift response to market demand. The
Group reported strong results of operations for the Year, underpinned by
the significant year-on-year growth in the level of revenue and profit.

In connection with the development of our traditional products, the Group
sustained rapid year-on-year growth in 2010 in the production and sales
of its principal products, such as household air-conditioning motors,
series motors, wave-wheel motors and dishwasher pumps, the market
position of the Group was further reinforced as a result. In terms of global
market share, we continued to be firmly established as the world’s top
supplier of household air-conditioning motors, while assuming the world’s
No. 1 ranking for our washing motor supplies during the year. Regarding
the development of strategic products, notable results were achieved in
the expansion of our product scope to refrigerator compressor motors,
direct current motors, commercial motors, small series motors and high-
speed series motors, which were gradually developing into important
growth niches for us on the back of strong market recognition. Our
endeavours to develop high-end products other than motors for home
appliances have also produced positive results, underpinned by a
breakthrough achieved in the commercial production started for high-end
products, vehicle motors and servo motors that have paved the way for
better product mix, stronger profitability and sustainable development for
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(1)

Micro Motors Business

The domestic air-conditioner market started recovery in full-swing
in 2010 under the combined effect of global economic recovery,
economic stimulus policies launched by the PRC government in the
second half of 2009, continued high temperature in most parts of
China and a red-hot property market. For the full year, the sales
volume of household air-conditioners in the PRC increased by
44.4% over the same period last year, while the sales volume of
commercial air-conditioner had basically returned to the level prior
to the financial crisis. The refrigerator sector has also benefited from
the favourable policies of the State, evidenced by 22.7% growth in
sales volume as compared to the same period last year (Source:
www.chinalOL.com).

For the micro motors business, the Group recorded approximately
67,666,000 units of domestic sales and 10,238,000 units of export
sales of micro motors for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
aggregate sales volume increased by 49.3% as compared to the
same period last year. The micro motors business recorded a
turnover of HK$4,395,039,000 for the full year of 2010, which
represented an increase of approximately 79.8% as compared to
HK$2,444,272,000 for the same period in 2009. Profit for the micro
motors business during 2010 amounted to HK$342,555,000, which
was approximately 104.5% higher as compared to HK$167,521,000
recorded for the same period in 2009. The growth was primarily
attributable to the positive effect of a string of economic stimulus
policies introduced by the government, as well as our efforts during
the period to adjust our product mix, implement cost reduction
initiatives and increase the proportion of self-made key
components.

QOur micro motors business sustained rapid growth in 2010 as sales
of household air-conditioning motors, our traditional products,
continued to grow at a rate above the industry average to further
expand our market share. Regarding the development of strategic
products, sales of compressor motors, direct current motors and
commercial motors grew rapidly after we have implemented the
lean production process, standardisation and resources integration,
optimisation of the plan management system and ongoing
recruitment and training of key technical personnel, which
contributed to steady improvements in our manufacturing capability
and operating efficiency of these strategic products. The key high-
end products, including ECM (electronically commutated motor)
systems, direct current motors for high output blowers and servo
motors have achieved a stage results, with commercial production
having been started for some of these products.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With regard to our business expansion in compressor motors,
through our strengthened cooperation with three major customers,
we have reached agreement with them for long-term strategic
supply in different aspects. With annual sales doubled in 2010 as
compared to 2009, we are now positioned among the forerunners
in the domestic market. Meanwhile, in order to further expand our
market coverage, we proactively developed businesses with other
potential corporations with proven strengths in the industry,
endeavored to expand our product scope to other types of
compressor motors including water pump motors and air
compressor motors and focused on brand building to highlight our
expertise, as ongoing drivers for the Group’s continuous growth. In
respect of commercial air-conditioning motors, further progress has
been achieved for the development of the American market, while
our sales office in America has further approached mainstream air-
conditioner manufacturers in America for business cooperation
With an initial foothold in America, we will next be looking at
opportunities for mergers and acquisitions, which is expected to
speed up the expansion of our market share. In connection with the
development of direct current motors, we vigorously developed the
market for high-output direct current motors on the basis of our
strengths in existing air-conditioning direct current motors, and
further strengthened our development in refrigerator fan direct
current motors, water heater direct current motors, air purifier direct
current motors, dryer direct current motors and other direct current
motors for home appliances, which represent an extensive
coverage of different types of products that drives continuous sales
growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(2)

Washing Motors Business

Export sales of washing machines in PRC grew by 30.2% in 2010
amidst gradual recovery of the external market, where economic
growth resumed in Europe and the United States. Domestic sales
of washing machines increased by 28.1% as compared to the same
period last year. The increase was attributable to economic stimulus
policies introduced by the PRC government, the growing mature of
second- and third-tier domestic markets, as well as replacements
and upgrades of washing machines by domestic consumers. The
overall sales volume of washing machines in 2010 increased by
approximately 28.8% and performance of the industry was
generally stable (Source: www.chinalOL.com).

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
approximately 19,423,000 units of domestic sales and
approximately 9,950,000 units of export sales for its washing
motors. Total sales volume grew approximately 40.9% as compared
to the same period last year. The aggregate turnover for the
washing motors business increased by approximately 52.4%
(approximately HK$1,694,340,000 for the same period in 2009) to
approximately HK$2,582,432,000. Profit for the washing motors
business during 2010 amounted to HK$186,694,000, compared to
HK$172,175,000 recorded for the same period in 2009. The
slowdown in profit growth was mainly attributable to our sales
strategy for the washing motor business, which involved adjustment
in the product mix for sales to meet real market demand and our
strategy to speed up the expansion of our market share of wave-
wheel washing motors, so as to attain our strategic goal of
assuming the position of the world’s top supplier of wave-wheel
washing motors in terms of market share. As a result, there was a
decline in our overall gross profit for the year.

In 2010, our washing motor business continued to focus on the
strategy of in-depth development of new washing motor products.
The Group continued to report strong growth in sales of washing
motors for the full year, being ranked number one in terms of global
market share of washing machine motors which further
consolidated its dominant position in the industry. Rapid growth in
the sales of series motors for washing machines was driven by
replacement and upgrades of the end-products; while our market
share in wave-wheel motors for washing machines also grew to
make us the world’s top supplier. Commercial production in large
volume has commenced for the VMW motor (for use in vertical
modular fully automated washing machines), a new product
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(3)

developed for supply to the American market. Through our sales
offices in Europe and America, we achieved encouraging results in
our vigorous development of the local markets in these regions,
and has built up stronger strategic partnerships with large
customers such as Whirlpool and Electrolux who are accounted for
increasing proportions of our supply.

To further strengthen our management in strategic products, we
introduced project-based responsibilities in our management
system. As a result, we achieved good results in the development
of small series motors and high-speed series motors. Commercial
production has commenced for vehicle motors. Small- to medium-
batch commercial production for direct current products (including
direct current washing machine motors and direct current
dishwasher motors) has started after we achieved technological
breakthroughs. Meanwhile, we introduced the practice of
operations on a company basis to facilitate the development of
small series motors and its rapid growth in business scale.

Moreover, to optimize the strategic deployment in its regional layout
of production bases, the Group has established a new production
plant in Hefei, which is expected to facilitate timely development of
new products and optimisation of product mix, accelerate
production capacity expansion, attain economies of scale and
enhance profitability.

Investment in Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang Investment Co., Ltd. (“Huaxiang”, an associate
owned as to 49% by the Group) initiated creative and in-depth
organisational reforms through the implementation of sub-divided
management functions and tentative delegation of management
duties, resulting in steady improvements in operational efficiency
and an enhanced management system. Notable reduction in the
unit cost of production was achieved following vigorous cost
reduction measures adopted during the year. The rapid growth in
revenue with significant improvements in profitability for the year
has put the business operations of Huaxiang on a right track of
development. In addition, Huaxiang has started the construction of
a new industrial park in Shanxi Province to expand its production
plant and facilities for casting products for the purpose of increasing
production capacity and improving production efficiency. It is also
expected to enhance the development of high-end precision
casting products such as precision casting products applicable to
vehicles and high-speed rail.

Share of profit of Huaxiang for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately HK$9,269,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position with a
current ratio of 118% as at 31 December 2010 (2009: 106%).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$529,639,000 (2009: HK$94,039,000), representing cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$875,449,000
less total bank borrowings of approximately HK$345,810,000 (comprising
approximately HK$241,446,000 would be due within one year and
approximately HK$104,364,000 would be due over one year). Hence, the
gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits divided by total equity) is not applicable.

Financial Ratios

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the
consolidated statement of financial position date:
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(Restated)

(E7)

Trade receivables turnover (Note 1) B 5 e I Bk B o J (B 5 1) 31 days 32 days

31H 32H

Trade payables turnover (Note 2) =) L ) 87 days 105 days

87H 105H

Current ratio (Note 3) BN EE & (M 5E3) 1.18 times 1.06 times

1.181% 1.06%

Notes: B & -

1, Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the 1. B 5 e U BR B B H) R AR BR AR ) B U BR B AR PR UK

opening trade receivables and closing trade receivables, divided by the
revenue of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

2. Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
trade payables and closing trade payables, divided by the cost of goods

sold of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

3. Current ratio is calculated based on the year-end current assets divided by
the year-end current liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2010, short-term borrowings of the Group were
secured by certain property with net book value of approximately
HK$97,891,000 (2009: approximately HK$125,081,000) and certain
leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of approximately
HK$60,429,000 (2009: approximately HK$84,026,000) of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as the financial guarantees discussed in below, as at 31 December
2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has given guarantee to banks in
respect of banking facilities extended to associates of approximately
HK$532,965,000 (2009: approximately HK$27,825,000). As at 31
December 2010, bank loans of approximately HK$304,971,000 (2009:
approximately HK$27,825,000) being guaranteed by the Group to
associates have been drawn down.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has invested
approximately HK$270,876,000 (2009: approximately HK$225,124,000) in
the addition of property, plant and equipment.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
instrument assets under various copper and aluminium future contracts
and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to approximately
HK$25,922,000 (2009: derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities
of approximately HK$25,708,000 and HK$902,000 respectively).

ERE AT

BEEHRWT

RZZ—ZF+A=+—H AEENEHE
AR & B IR EDF B 4085 #97,891,000L (=2 &
LF - 4974 #125,081,0000T) 2 & T ¥ 2 A RIRE
B 498 %60,429,000TC (ZE T NF - H B
84,026,0007T) 2 & T & £ #h & I b {5 F # 1F
RER -

HAREE
BT EERN  AEERAD —F—
%E&:%%n¢+:ﬂ:+famﬁﬁmét
RARBE -
BLE R
R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—HB AEBAEETH
B & N B B IR 17 @t & 1E B 49 7% #532,965,000
TER(CEZT AT  498%27,825,0007T) - =
T—FFF+-_A=Z+—H AEEMERNOHE

NARITE R4 B 304,971,000 (ZEENF -
%) 78 #507,825,0007T) T IR EX ©

EXHEX
REBEZE-ZT—ZFF+_A=+—HLFR K&
E & & #4) 7 #270,876,000 L (ZE BN F: 978
#005124,0007T) EAREMHE  BEERBEZ
)Eﬁ °

fTESF TR

RZZE—ZEF+A=+—H8 AEEITLET
MEEAEEORIINERREL  REBTES
B T B & E 48125022000 (ZETNE : 7
44 B T AEE KB 25,708,000 RIT4A € &
T A AE4E%902,0007T)

REZRERNIT —ZE-ZFFH



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

During the Year, approximately 20% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euro and US dollars. In the meantime, the
Group has also imported raw materials from the suppliers which were
paid in Euro and US dollars for settlement. As a result, foreign exchange
risks associated with these currencies were partially offset. On the other
hand, the Group has made arrangements to purchase foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposure arising
from export trading. There were wide fluctuations in exchange rate of Euro
during the Year. As only 6% of the Group’s total sales for the Year was
derived from countries in Europe with Euro for settlement, and the
financial risk associated with the fluctuation in exchange rate for Euro has
been mitigated through our proper hedging arrangement in foreign
currencies, there was no significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rate for Euro during the Year. The Group has strengthened its
control over the risk of exchange rate fluctuation, and will review from time
to time the sufficiency and appropriateness of the financial instruments
which were currently used to hedge significant foreign currency risks.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land and land use rights amounting to approximately HK$139,757,000
(2009: approximately HK$35,396,000).

Placing and Subscription of Shares of the Company

On 29 March 2010, Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited (“Midea
(Cayman lIslands)”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, entered
into a placing agreement with the Company and the placing agent,
pursuant to which Midea (Cayman Islands) agreed to place, through the
placing agent, 1,200,000,000 existing shares of the Company owned by
Midea (Cayman Islands) to not less than six independent placees at the
placing price of HK$0.42 per share (the “Placing”).

On 29 March 2010, Midea (Cayman Islands) entered into a subscription
agreement with the Company, pursuant to which Midea (Cayman Islands)
agreed to subscribe for 600,000,000 new shares of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.42 per share (the “Subscription”).

The completion of the Placing and the Subscription took place on 1 April

2010 and 9 April 2010 respectively. The Company received the net
proceeds of approximately HK$245 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 17,123 full time
employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC. While the Company was
supported by a team of young and highly competent staff, it does not
ignore the importance of the development, management and future
planning of its human resources. With the use of open recruitment, job
rotation, internal promotion and professional training for the recruitment,
deployment and nurture of employees, it is intended to ensure the
selection and deployment of employees to be carried out in an open, fair
and equitable manner. Besides, it could also provide staff with a platform
for their further promotion and development. Through the implementation
of comprehensive human resources management, it is aimed at achieving
the objectives of enhancing employees contributions to the Group and
shaping the Group’s strategic advantages in human resources.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme for employees as an
incentive to motivate employees by linking their interests to the future
development and expansion of the Group. The Group currently provides
staff with competitive remuneration packages (comprising salary, bonus
and benefits in kind), adequate insurance cover (including pension,
medical insurance, unemployment compensation insurance, work injury
compensation insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident
fund. In addition, the Group also provides its staff with other benefits
including on-the-job training, meal subsidy, housing subsidy, cooperative
medical scheme services, support fund and recreational activities etc.

Business Prospects

Confronted with profoundly volatile market conditions both in China and
abroad, economic recovery in major developing countries looks feeble,
while uncertainties remain as to whether external demand will continue to
grow stably. Given gradual depletion of the world’s non-renewable
resources and the effect of global warming, the energy conservation and
eco-friendliness became important development themes for our industry.
On the other hand, industry players have to focus on technological
innovations and product mix adjustment for their future development,
given rising costs of raw materials and the gradual loss of their advantage
in low labour costs. In view of the above, the Group will expedite industrial
development with its focus shifting from quantity to quality. Furthermore,
the Group will speed up its pace of breaking the bottleneck currently
experienced in production-based services such as research and
development, design, standardisation, marketing, supply chain and brand
building, which have restrained its attempts in industrial transformation
and upgrade. Greater efforts will also be made to cultivate new strategic
sectors and expedite the adjustment of our product mix.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Taking advantage of the major historic opportunity presented by the PRC
government’s move to increase domestic demand on all fronts and
actively accelerate the development of energy-saving and low-carbon
products and the ongoing market needs for product upgrades and
replacement, we will continue to focus on electric motors, seeking to
further improve our business relating to leading-edge products and
materialise our potential and strengths in production scale, manufacturing
capabilities and other advantages. In line with our emphasis on
technological innovation, we will expedite the research and development
of new products with ongoing investments in technology. In particular, we
will focus on the transformation of manufacturing capabilities and creation
of new growth niches to raise investment efficiency for the Group. To
procure the building of core teams of technical staff and the fostering of
key technologies, it is important for us to step up with the recruitment of
key technical professionals. The implementation of lean production
process and other cost management measures will be further enhanced,
with a view to assuring long-term and stable development on the back of
our strong core competitiveness and market position. We will strive to
become a world-class expert in motor manufacturing that provides
systematic motor solutions for customers, sustainable and incremental
reward for shareholders, sound career development opportunities for our
employees and greater value for the community in general.

For our micro motor business, we will further develop our air-conditioning
motors in terms of sophistication and specialisation to assure our leading
position in the global market. Focused efforts will also be made in the
development of strategic products such as commercial motors, direct
current motors and servo motors to broaden the scope of applications of
these products and their related technologies. We will continue to increase
the investment of resources in these products to enhance their
competitiveness.

For our washing motor business, efforts will be made to further realise the
market potentials of our core products including series motors, wave-
wheel motors and dishwasher pumps. We intend to foster competitive
edge on the basis of our overall operating capabilities and strengths in
quality control and market service, reinforcing and enhancing our market
position and business scale by increasing our share in market sub-
segments. As the Group has become the largest washing motor
manufacturer in the PRC commanding rapid growth in its washing motor
business, it has established its third production base for washing motors
in Hefei in 2010 in addition to its two existing production bases in Shunde,
Foshan of Guangdong and Huaian, Jiangsu. This strategic move was in
line with the growing number of major domestic home appliance
manufacturers who have extended their business chain to East China and
Central China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has devoted strong efforts to the market development for its
strategic products, such as motors for small home appliances, vehicle
motors and direct current motors, with the investment of increasing
resources to strengthen our competitive advantages in terms of
technological edge and scale. Such efforts are expected to expand the
Group’s market share in these strategic products and provide a driving
force for sustainable growth.

The Group’s Shanghai Research and Development Centre, located in the
core zone of Zhangjiang Hi-tech Park, a national-grade hi-tech
development zone in Shanghai, will be officially unveiled in late March
2011. The Shanghai Research and Development Centre was built to
further enhance the Group’s competitiveness in product development by
facilitating the integration of its technological resources, raising its overall
standard and capabilities in research and development, as well as
increasing the technological level of its products. The primary functions of
the research centre include the development of key technologies and
building up a team of professional technicians, so as to improve the
Group’s internal system of proprietary research and development. The
centre will focus on the research and development of products
commanding high-efficiency, high-technology and high value-added, in a
bid to enhance the technological competitiveness of our products to fulfil
the market requirements, which will provide a solid foundation for our
sustainable development in the long run.

With regard to the casting business, we will continue to focus on the
development of high-end casting products. In this connection, our team
of high-calibre professionals will be further expanded, while high-end
equipment and new technologies will also be introduced. On the basis of
our existing business operations, we will swiftly enhance our ability to
produce large-sized, light-weight, high-precision and digitalised casting
products from clean production processes, using premium casting
technologies with strong performance in precision, efficiency and
cleanliness. These efforts are expected to improve the core
competitiveness and strengthen the market position in the casting
industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company. The board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance
will contribute to maximize the corporate value of the Company to its
shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company has fully complied with all the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry with each of the
Directors, all of the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2010.

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different
businesses and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular
area of expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out
below in this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board held five meetings,
Directors participated these meetings either in person or through
electronic means of communication. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2010 are as follows:

H

BE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=+t—HLFE"
ERTEARGE EFAURGAUEFEADTR
2HEZEEE ZEFNEE_T-—TF+_-A
=t+—HIEFEHEE FLERIT

o i
=

Number of meetings attended/
held during the tenure of
the respective Directors

% EERETHE
BRE, EES®
Directors BEE Eﬁg‘iﬁﬂﬁi'_’“ﬁ’“ﬁ
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Cai Qiwu EHREE 5/5
Mr. Jiang Deging EEELRE 5/5
Mr. Qu Fei %ﬂﬁ'ﬁ 4 5/5
Mr. Gao Fazhong Bt 5/5
Ms. Yuan Liqun &%‘Jﬁﬁi 4/5
Mr. Li Jianwei REEEE 5/5
Mr. Zheng Weikang BEEEE 5/5
Non-executive Director EPITEE
Ms. Tan Xuemei (resigned on 18 April 2010) BEFZ T (KT —FFWA+/\HE1T) 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITESE
Mr. Tan Jinsong B 5/5
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEA B ST A 5/5
Ms. Chen Chunhua REEX LT 4/5
For each of the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December REBEZE_Z—ZEF+_A=+—-HILFEETZ
2010, each Director had been consulted beforehand and served with prior REES S SESHNSHESHZHRALE
notice to enable him/her to include matters in the agenda of the EEaIEE FEHARNBERTNEZS SR
forthcoming Board meeting. HEMAREE -

The Board will hold four regular meetings every year. The Company
generally gives at least 14 days notice in advance for regular Board
meetings and gives reasonable notice for all other Board meetings in
order to give all Directors opportunity to attend the meetings. During the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Company had complied with the said
notice requirements for Board meetings by giving all Directors adequate

time to plan their schedules to attend.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
complied with applicable rules and regulations and corporate governance
practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board, decisions reached, concerns raised and divergent views
expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2010, draft and final versions of the minutes
of Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time
(generally within 14 days for both cases) after the Board meeting had been
held for their comments and records. All Board minutes are available for
inspection by all Directors.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

The provisions of the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
have set out a list of matters that should not be dealt with by way of
circulation of written resolution by Directors and such list includes the
circumstances where a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board considered to be material.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors was arranged.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are performed by separate individuals so as to enhance the division of
responsibilities between them and to ensure a balance of power and
authority. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Jiang Deging respectively. The Chairman
is responsible for taking the lead of the Board in determining the strategic
direction of the Group, ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
business contemplated at Board meetings and receive timely, adequate,
complete and reliable information. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with the support of other executive Directors is responsible for
strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operations of the Group.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, including seven executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Cai Qiwu (Chairman), Mr. Jiang Deqing, Mr. Qu Fei,
Mr. Chen Jianhong (appointed on 15 March 2011), Ms. Yuan Ligqun, Mr. Li
Jianwei and Mr. Zheng Weikang and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen
Chunhua, in order to maintain a balanced composition with a strong
independent element on the Board.

Ms. Tan Xuemei resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 18
April 2010.

Mr. Gao Fazhong resigned as an executive Director, the Chief Financial
Officer and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company on 15
March 2011.

The biographies of each of the current Directors are set out in pages 33 to
36 in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company.

The Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer,
have no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships with each other.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the three independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent within the definitions of the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

The Articles require that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and (ii) the managing Director of the Company (if any) shall
whilst holding office as such be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire by rotation in each year.
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The Articles provide that at every annual general meeting of the Company,
and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which a Director
may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that, notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The Board is of the view that such
mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to the appointments to the
Board and that changes to its composition can be managed without
undue disruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company had entered into
letters of appointment with Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms.
Chen Chunhua, each an independent non-executive Director for a term
commencing on 18 May 2010 and ending on the date of the Company’s
next annual general meeting, as their respective then existing letters of
appointment expired on 18 May 2010. All these letters of appointment
shall be terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice to the
other party or the payment to other party of a sum equal to the relevant
Director’s monthly remuneration.

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board as
a whole is responsible for appointment of new Directors. According to the
Articles, the Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board, subject to re-election by the shareholders at the
next annual general meeting. Consideration would be taken, among other
things, to the nominee’s qualifications, experience and ability relevant to
the requirements of the Company’s business. It is believed that the Board
collectively is able to identify and select suitable candidates to be
appointed to the Board and ensure the Board has a balanced composition
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company.

The Board has examined and gave advice on the employment terms of
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Board
has also reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.
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Responsibilities of Directors

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company, each of the newly
appointed Director will receive a formal and tailored induction and a
comprehensive orientation package containing the information with regard
to the duties and responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements and the business
and corporate governance policies of the Company. Updates will also be
given to all Directors when necessary to keep them abreast of the latest
changes and development in legal, regulatory and corporate governance
requirements to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are active in participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct.
They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests of other Directors
arise. They serve as members of various Board committees and will
scrutinize the performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives and monitor the reporting of performance.

Supply of and Access to Information

In respect of regular Board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors at least three days before the
date of a Board or Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is
volunteered by management, each Director may contact senior
management through individual and independent channel to make further
enquires if necessary and such enquiries will be responded to by
management within a reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore,
Board papers and minutes are available for inspection by Directors and
Board committee members.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee.

The written terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee are available on
the Company’s website http://www.welling.com.cn.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in September 2005. Chairman and majority
of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chen Chunhua (Chairman), Mr. Tan
Jinsong and Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cai Qiwu and Mr. Zheng Weikang.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; and

(i) to determine the remuneration packages of all executive Directors

and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended ®HZE-Z—ZHF+-_F=+—HItFE  FMZ
31 December 2010, members participated these meetings either in EE@ERITMASH - ZESHEBAHHFHIUE
person or through electronic means of communication. The attendance  FEBH A N2 HZ T # - KL 8K B H E FH O
record of each member at the Remuneration Committee meetings is set ZE& & #% EE?@“ZZIDT :

out as follows:

Number of meetings attended
Members of Remuneration Committee HMESER S R
Ms. Chen Chunhua (Chairman) REEK L (L/E) 2/2
Mr. Tan Jinsong EERAY S 2/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEREB L& 2/2
Mr. Cai Qiwu EHREE 2/2
Mr. Zheng Weikang ERERREE 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Remuneration Committee & Z = 3 TFEF+_A=tT—HLEFE FTHWZ

had performed the following works: BEEEEIT NI IE:

()  reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of executive () REHEBEFE  BHEERMERTES (=
Directors (except the Chairman) and senior management after FBHRINEESHREBRABEZHMWNGFE:
consultations with the Chairman;

(i)  reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the (i) R—AXZECeRPEHMMEETFZH
Chairman in a committee meeting at which the Chairman abstained S TRERMEERSHFHEBEZ
from voting in respect of the resolutions approving his own RERRERR R

remuneration packages; and
(i)  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration and terms of appointment of independent non-

executive Directors.

The Company’s remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management are set on the basis that the remuneration level of the
Directors and senior management will be linked with their responsibilities
and their contributions to the achievement of corporate performance
target of the Company as resolved by the Board from time to time. For the
purpose of determining the level of remuneration of Directors and senior
management, appraisal of the work performance of Directors and senior
management had been conducted during the year ended 31 December
2010. Such work performance of Directors and senior management was
judged by the extent to which the Company’s budget target was met and
the financial performance of the Company in terms of sales revenue and
net profits as disclosed in the audited financial statements was achieved.
No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2010 are set out in note 24 (b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of professional firms, to discharge its duties, if
necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established its audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in August 1999. All members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors, one of whom has possessed professional
qualifications and accounting and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong (Chairman), Mr. Lam Ming
Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing
and monitoring the integrity of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and
risk management of the Group, reviewing the findings from the works
carried out by internal audit department and monitoring the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor. Before commencement of annual
audit, the Audit Committee will discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of audit, the significant risk analysis and the impact of the
change in accounting policies on the financial statements of the Group.
The Audit Committee is required to review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2010, members participated these meetings either in person or
through electronic means of communication. The attendance record of
each member at the Audit Committee meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings attended

Members of Audit Committee BEXESERE H B R
Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman) B E(EE) 3/3
Mr. Lam Ming Yung B E A 3/3
Ms. Chen Chunhua PR&EEZ LT 2/3
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Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
who also serves as secretary of the Audit Committee. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Audit Committee for their comments and records
respectively, in both cases generally within 14 days after the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

(i) reviewed the Company’s 2009 annual report and the preliminary
announcement of final results;

(i) reviewed the Company’s 2010 interim report and the preliminary
announcement of interim results;

(ii) approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the

external auditor for 2010 audit and other matters;

(iv)  reviewed the 2010 internal control report prepared by the internal

audit department and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal

control system and risk management of the Group;

(v) reviewed the connected and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year;

(vi)  reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence and
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor; and
(viij  advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the

related risks to the management.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2010 consolidated
financial statements, including the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor
and recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010. The annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2011. The recommendation will be put
forward for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

EFZEREERZE SRR ENZER IR K
BEAMEBAARRTANR - ——F 2 INER
A RRBERARRZEERRBFAG L
R 2 MR -

BHE_Z-—ZF+A=+—-HLFE AERQ
AN EEZBENE B KEG T EBAX
HZzMEEmT

Fee paid/payable

Eft FEHER

HK$'000

BT T

Audit services and review of continuing connected transactions ZERBREMFERERS 2,400

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors of the Board
from time to time. Under its terms of reference, the Executive Committee
shall be responsible for determination on the matters relating to the
Group’s day-to-day operations and administration.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the Auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to
56 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective
internal control system in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of
failure in achieving the Company’s objective.
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The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s
assets; (b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c)
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual (“Manual”)
which was approved by the Board. This Manual contains a
comprehensive overview and description of the objectives, content,
methods and duties of the internal control system, and facilitates the
ongoing examination and evaluation of the Company’s compliance with
existing rules and regulations and of the effectiveness of internal controls.
During the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company consistently applied the full set of Manual
which covers the control of high-risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales,
finance and personnel management. The Board has, through the Audit
Committee, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the
Group’s internal control system.

During the Year, the Group based on the internal audit findings and
improvement plans submitted by the internal audit department to the
Audit Committee continued to enhance and improve the internal control
system of the Group.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting records are
maintained.
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Communication With Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an open forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of the Company.
Sufficient notice for general meetings will be given by the Company to the
shareholders pursuant to the Articles and the requirements of the Listing
Rules. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the
Company. The Chairman of the Board and other Directors being members
of Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee will be available at annual
general meeting to answer questions raised by shareholders. Members of
the independent board committee will be available to answer questions at
general meeting to approve connected transaction which is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval. To facilitate enforcement of
shareholders’ rights, substantially different issues are dealt with under
separate resolutions at general meetings of the Company.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be
published in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to
safeguard the shareholders’ rights of information.

The Company’s website at www.welling.com.cn provides timely and
updated information on investor relations, corporate governance and
other latest news of the Company to enable shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The investor relations department of the Company is responsible for
handling the communications with our investors. It will regularly organize
road shows and one-on-one meetings with institutional investors and
financial analysts to promote better understanding of the Company and
keep continuous dialogues with investors.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. CAIl Qiwu, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 2008 and re-designated as
executive Director and the Chairman on 1 January 2009. Mr. Cai is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of
the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1992 and has held various
senior management positions in the Midea Group. He has considerable
experience in strategic management, risk management and research and
development activities. Mr. Cai is the chief executive officer of a member
group of Midea Group. He was a director of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd.
(“GD Midea”), a company controlled by Midea and the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cai holds a Master of Technology
Mechanical Manufacturing Degree from the Huazhong University of
Science and Technology.

Mr. JIANG Deqing, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 August 2008. Mr. Jiang
is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in May 1995. He has been the General Manager of washing motor
division of the Group since January 2005 and responsible for overall
management of washing motor division. He has held various senior
management positions in the Group and has over 15 years of experience
in the washing motor industry and years of managerial experience. Mr.
Jiang serves as a vice-chairman in certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Jiang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Industrial
Trade) from Chongqing University.

Mr. QU Fei, aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Qu is a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Midea Group in 1998. He has held various senior management positions
in the Midea Group and has considerable experience in operations and
strategic management, information technology, and purchasing activities.
Mr. Qu is the chief operating officer of a member group of Midea Group.
Mr. Qu is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qu
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of

Finance and Economics.
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Mr. CHEN Jianhong, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director,
the Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company on 15 March 2011. Mr. Chen joined the Midea Group in
1993. He has held various senior positions of financial management in
Midea Group and has considerable experience in financial management.
Mr. Chen is the chief financial officer of a member group of Midea Group.
Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics awarded by the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics and a Master’s Degree in
Administration awarded by the Fuzhou University. He is an accountant
accredited by the Ministry of Finance People’s Republic of China.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She joined the Midea Group in
1992. She has held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group and has considerable experience in finance, audit and overall
management. Ms. Yuan is a director and vice-president of Midea and the
chief financial officer of Midea Group. She is a director of GD Midea. She
previously was a supervisor of GD Midea. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yuan holds a Master of International
Management Degree from The Australian National University.

Mr. LI Jianwei, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 14 June 2005. Mr. Li is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1994
and has held various senior management positions in the Midea Group.
Mr. Li has considerable experience in strategic development activities. Mr.
Li is a director and vice president of Midea and the chief strategic
development officer of Midea Group. He is also a director of GD Midea.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from Fudan University.

Mr. ZHENG Weikang, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director
and the Chief Director of the International Offices of the Company on 31
March 2008. Mr. Zheng is a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in
1986. He has held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group and has considerable experience in financial and overall
management. Mr. Zheng is currently a director of Midea International
Corp. Co., Ltd and certain non-listed subsidiaries of the Midea Group. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zheng holds
a Master of International Management Degree from The Australian
National University.
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Mr. GAO Fazhong, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director and
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Gao is
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Midea Group in 1994. He has held various senior management positions
in the Midea Group and has considerable experience in financial
management. Mr. Gao is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Gao holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Technology and Business University. He is an accountant
accredited by the PRC Ministry of Finance. Mr. Gao resigned as an
executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company on 15 March 2011.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAN Jinsong, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan
is a non-practicing member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was approved as a PRC registered
accountant in June 1995 and has become a non-practicing member of
the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2003. He possesses over 25 years of experience in the
profession of accounting and financial management. Mr. Tan is currently a
professor of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen University and
was the Head of Department of the Faculty of Accountancy and the Vice
Dean of the School of Management of Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd. and Yihua
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange) and Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). He was an independent director of a number
of PRC listed companies, including Huafa Industrial Share Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Guanhao High-Tech Co., Ltd., both companies are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Ronsen Super Mirco-Wire Co., Ltd., both companies are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He graduated from the School of Law of Shanghai Eastern
Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence with a Bachelor of Law
Degree in 1986. Mr. Lam started practicing law in 1987 in the province of
Fujian in the PRC, and moved to Hong Kong in mid-1993. He was
registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of Hong Kong in July
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1995, and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant, Corporate Finance,
and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong Kong office of Sidley
Austin LLP. Mr. Lam is also currently an independent non-executive
director of China Agrotech Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong) and a non-executive director of China Mining Resources
Group Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHEN Chunhua, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 22 December 2004. Ms. Chen is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chen holds a Postdoctorate Degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing University. She was a professor,
tutor of doctoral candidates and Vice Dean of the Faculty of Business
Administration of South China University of Technology. She was a visiting
professor for the Asia-Pacific EMBA Program of The National University of
Singapore and is a part-time professor of Nanjing University. Ms. Chen’s
research speciality was enterprise management, particularly enterprise
organisation and operational management. Ms. Chen was a president and
a director of Shandong Liuhe Company Limited and has considerable
experience in enterprise operational management. Ms. Chen is presently
an independent director of China Merchants Fund Management Co. Ltd.
and Shunde Rural Commercial Bank.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 38, joined the Group in July 1996. Mr. Zhou
is the general manager of the micro motors division of the Group. He has
held various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of the
business operations of the Group. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. ZENG Yong, aged 39, joined the Group in June 1999. Mr. Zeng is the
general manager of the electronic and electric component division of the
Group. He has held various senior management positions in the Group
and has considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of
the business operations of the Group. Mr. Zeng holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Electrical Engineering from Zhejiang University.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Final Results

The final results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 61.

Dividend

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.8
cent per share for the Year (2009: HKO.5 cent) to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 26 May 2011. Subject to the approval from shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
26 May 2011 (“AGM?”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on 17 June
2011.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM and the payment of a proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 23
May 2011 to 26 May 2011 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to be qualified
for attending the AGM and the payment of the proposed final dividend, all
holders of the shares of the Company whose transfers have not been
registered are requested to deposit the transfer documents together with
the relevant share certificates to the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-
1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong by no later than 4: 30 p.m. on 20 May 2011.
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Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 16(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$124,940,000 (2009: HK$104,785,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 184. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the Year.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 June

2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are disclosed in Note 16(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CAI Qiwu (Chairman)

Mr. JIANG Deging

Mr. QU Fei

Mr. CHEN Jianhong (appointed on 15 March 2011)
Ms. YUAN Ligun

Mr. LI Jianwei

Mr. ZHENG Weikang

Mr. GAO Fazhong (resigned on 15 March 2011)

Non-executive Director
Ms. TAN Xuemei (resigned on 18 April 2010)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TAN Jinsong
Mr. LAM Ming Yung
Ms. CHEN Chunhua

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Chen Jianhong will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with article 91 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Jiang Deqing, Mr. Li Jianwei and Ms. Chen Chunhua will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 18 May 2010, the Company entered into the letters of appointment
with three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong,
Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua for a term commencing on 18
May 2010 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting as their respective letters of appointment had expired on 18 May
2010.
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The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the
remuneration of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the
remuneration policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such
letters of appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s
written notice to the other party or the payment to the other party of a
sum equal to the relevant Director’s monthly remuneration. These letters
of appointment are exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company had received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence and considered
that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
based on the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the Group’s
Human Resources Department based on the duties, responsibilities, work
performance, qualifications and competence of employees and prevailing
market conditions.

The emoluments of all executive Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the relevant Directors and comparable
market statistics. No Director will be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to the Directors and eligible employees.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out in Note
24(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management of the
Company are set out on pages 33 to 36.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity or Debt Securities

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”),
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
which have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which any such Director or chief executive is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Interests in share options of the Company (long position)

During the Year, the movement of the share options granted to the

REATZEBREER (1FR)

RAFEE REBREFIRTESZERESR

Directors under the Share Option Scheme were as follows: ERCINE
Closing price
Options immediately
Options held exercised Options Options held at Exercise before
Date of at 1 January during the lapsed during 31 December price per the date
Name grant 2010 Year the Year 2010 option Exercisable period of grant
R-B-%%§ R-B-%f
—A—BRE REEERT REEEAX T-ZA=+-8B SHEBERE RERHAY
24 RHBH ZHERE GZBRE SZBERE BAZBERE fTER AR RRGBETHE
HKS HK$
B s
Directors %
Mr. Cai Qiwu EHREE 09/01/2009 68,000,000 - - 68,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note a)
(HizE a)
Mr. Jiang Deging EEELE 09/01/2009 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010~ 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note a)
(it a)
Mr. Qu Fei EREE 09/01/2009 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010~ 0.151
31/03/2017(Note a)
(GEE)
Mr. Gao Fazhong BEBEE 09/01/2009 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010~ 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note a)
(Ffzt a)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung HHBEE 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017(Note a)
(HizE a)
Ms. Chen Chunhua REEZL 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017(Note a)
(FHizE a)
Mr. Chan Wai Dune (Note b) B # i % 4 (¥i5tb) 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 0.78 30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - 0.157 01/04/2010~ 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note a)
(FizE a)
Ms. Tan Xuemei (Note c) ESla+ (M) 09/01/2009 5,000,000 (1,250,000) (3,750,000) - 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note a)
(Fizt a)
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Notes:

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The options
granted on 9 January 2009 shall be exercisable during the option period
subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25%
achievement of the performance target of the net profit attributable to the

owners of the Company of the relevant period as set out below:

each and the

1. the first 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than 100% of the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial

year ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from
discontinued business) (“Net Profit of 2008”);
2. the second 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be

exercisable within six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 150% of the Net
Profit of 2008;

3. the third 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 200% of the Net
Profit of 2008; and

4. the remaining 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 280% of the Net
Profit of 2008.

Mr. Chan Wai Dune resigned as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2009, 7,000,000 share options of Mr.
February 2010.

Chan were lapsed on 1

Ms. Tan Xuemei resigned as a non-executive Director on 18 April 2010,
3,750,000 share options of Ms. Tan were lapsed on 19 October 2010.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 16(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO),
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of the shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of the SFO), or
had exercised any such right during the Year.

Other than those interests disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010,
none of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (including
their spouses or children under the age of 18 years old) had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
which is required to be recorded and kept in the register in accordance
with section 352 of the SFO, or notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses
As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors was interested in any

business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 December 2010, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

EYgARE

FERRER

IR 08 5 B0 5 16 1 55,336
T RTE-FFTAS
BB TRA BB
KA R AR D R i S A

+

ARE

SIN
IS

BB
THALE(E
YNNI A )

Approximate

Number of  percentage of

Name of shareholder shares held shareholding
BREEE BB RERKHE HFR\BOESE
Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited (“Midea (Cayman Islands)”)  Long position 9,506,023,897 67.46%

(Note 1)
EnEk(FEHB)BRAR(EN(HAE2ES) DD A
Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited (“Midea Holding”) (Note 2) Long position 9,5606,023,897 67.46%
EHEREBV)ER QA ([Fay iz F2) HeE
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3) Long position 9,506,023,897 67.46%
ENEBEERAFTENDMEEI) S5}
Foshan Shunde Midea Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Long position 9,506,023,897 67.46%

(formerly known as Foshan Shunde Tiantuo Investment Co., Ltd.)

(*Shunde Midea”) (Note 4)
FILTIER R ENREZERER AR (FIEHLTIEERE S8

RAKREGRARDTIEE S &) (M 514)
Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Long position 9,506,023,897 67.46%
fa] 12 % A (Bff 7%5) S
Ms. Liang Fengchai (Note 6) Long position 9,5606,023,897 67.46%
R B W 2z + (P 556) aS)
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Notes:

These 9,506,023,897 shares of the Company were registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).

Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the 9,506,023,897 shares of
the Company in which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested by virtue of
its holding 100% equity interest in Midea (Cayman Islands).

Midea was deemed to be interested in the 9,506,023,897 shares of the
Company in which Midea Holding was deemed to be interested by virtue of
its holding 100% equity interest in Midea Holding.

The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 84% by Shunde Midea.
Accordingly, Shunde Midea was deemed to be interested in the
9,606,023,897 shares of the Company in which Midea was deemed to be
interested by virtue of its holding 84% equity interest in Midea.

The registered capital of Shunde Midea is owned as to 94.55% by Mr. He
Xiangjian. Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the
9,5606,023,897 shares of the Company in which Shunde Midea was deemed
to be interested by virtue of his holding 94.55% equity interest in Shunde
Midea.

Ms. Liang Fengchai is the spouse of Mr. He Xiangjian and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 9,506,023,897 shares of the Company in
which Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company is not

aware of any other person who has an interest or a short position in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company which was required to be

notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and have been recorded in the register kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the Year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for 38.1%
of the Group’s total sales during the Year. The five largest customers are
set out below:

1. 10.5% from Guangdong Midea Refrigeration Appliances Co., Ltd. of
which a Director of the Company is director and it is controlled by
Midea.

2. 7.9% from Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave Electrical Appliances
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which is a company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of Midea.

3. 7.6% from Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu Air-conditioning
Equipment Co., Ltd. of which a Director of the Company is director
and it is controlled by Midea.

4. 6.6% from Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd.
of which a Director of the Company is director and it is controlled
by Midea.

5. The remaining largest customers accounted for 5.5% of the total
sales during the Year and none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an
interest in the said major customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together were
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the
Year.

FEERREER

AEBRAREFZHEEREAEERAFEEY
SHEAEEE381% c AARPHIMT

10.5% KEERENBSRBERAT
RA—REERZLANESR ZRAXR
B P o

)

N
S

Q%XQ%MWWME%MW&fmiL
ERAR HAEN BT EREIZHH
Aﬂ"

TONREEREMNEBE NI LIREGR
DA ARA—REBEREZRAESE %
NAE]ZERTES] o

6%XE%WE@T§%Q&ﬁﬁ@ﬂn
ARB—HREERZRABNESE ZRAF
RS -

BTRARTPHAFE 25 EHFHE55%
AMEES HBEALIEMBRRARE
EEZMABBEARR ZEHITIRAS%IA £
BEZSIEREPTHAER -

AEBERAHERZRBELEAKRERASE
B A2 5B R BE 7R30% °

REZRERNIT —ZE-ZFFH



48

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected and continuing

connected transactions which were disclosed by published

announcements:

Connected Transactions

(1)

On 13 April 2010, the Company through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(“Welling Washer”) entered into an equity transfer agreement
(“Equity Transfer Agreement”) with Wuxi Little Swan Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
Little Swan”) for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Wuxi Little
Swan Huayin Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Huayin”) at a cash
consideration of RMB75 million. Details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 13 April 2010.

On 22 April 2010, the Company further announced that the Equity
Transfer Agreement was terminated by Welling Washer entering into
a termination agreement with Wuxi Little Swan on 22 April 2010 due
to the uncertainty of Wuxi Little Swan in acquiring the remaining
25% interest of Huayin from two other minority shareholders before
Wauxi Little Swan can transfer the 100% equity interest in Huayin to
Welling Washer.

As Wuxi Little Swan is accounted for as a subsidiary of GD Midea
Holding Co., Ltd. (“GD Midea”, a company in which Midea has a
42.49% interest), therefore Wuxi Little Swan being an associate of
Midea, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

In connection with the acquisition of Huayin, on 15 December 2010,
the Company announced that Welling Washer entered into another
equity transfer agreement (“New Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
Wuxi Little Swan on 15 December 2010 for the acquisition of the
100% equity interest in Huayin at a cash consideration of RMB75
million as Wuxi Little Swan had completed the acquisition of the
remaining 25% interest of Huayin from two other minority
shareholders and were able to transfer its 100% equity interest in
Huayin to Welling Washer. According to the New Equity Transfer
Agreement, the acquisition of Huayin was completed on 17 January
2011 upon the approval being obtained from the Administration
Department for Industry and Commerce of Wuxi for the registration
of transfer of 100% equity interest of Huayin from Wuxi Little Swan
to Welling Washer.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the renewed Midea
framework agreement with Midea (“Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement”) for the renewal of the Midea Framework Agreement
dated 22 February 2008. The Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement set out the basis for the sale of motors and electronic
and electrical components for electrical household appliances and
raw materials by the Group to Midea Group and the purchase of
raw materials and processed raw materials and motor samples by
the Group from Midea Group and the relevant annual caps of
transaction amount for the three years ending 31 December 2012.

The Renewed Midea Framework Agreement, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the relevant annual caps, were
approved by independent shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 18 May
2010 (“EGM”).

On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the Wellkey framework
agreement (“Wellkey Framework Agreement”) with Foshan City
Wellkey Electrical Material Co., Ltd. (“Wellkey”,
controlled by Mr. He Jianfeng who is the son of Mr. He Xiangjian,

a company

the controlling shareholder of Midea) which set out the basis for the
purchase of raw materials by the Group from Wellkey and the
annual caps of transaction amount for the three years ending 31
December 2012.

The Wellkey Framework Agreement, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the relevant annual caps were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company at the EGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the renewed logistic
service agreement (“Renewed Logistic Service Agreement”) with
Wuhu Annto Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Annto”, a subsidiary of Midea) for
renewal of the logistic service agreement, which was entered into
between the Company and Annto on 17 April 2009 and expired on
31 December 2009, in order to continue the provision of logistic
services by Annto or its subsidiaries to the Group and set out the
annual caps of logistic service fees payable for the three years
ending 31 December 2012. The Renewed Logistic Service
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
exempt from the requirement of independent shareholders’
approval pursuant to the Listing Rules.

On 13 April 2010, Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Welling”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the financial services framework agreement
(“Financial Services Framework Agreement”) with Midea Group
Finance Co., Ltd. (“Finance Company”, a company owned as to 5%
by Guangdong Welling, 55% by Midea and 40% by GD Midea) in
respect of the provision of certain financial services, including
deposit, loan, bills discounting, foreign exchange, guarantee
services and other financial services by the Finance Company to
the Guangdong Welling and its subsidiaries for a term commencing
on the date of approval by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the EGM and ending on 31 December 2012.

The Financial Services Framework Agreement, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the relevant annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
EGM.

The Finance Company was granted approval to commence

business by the China Banking Regulatory Commission in June
2010 and it has commenced its business since November 2010.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The following table sets out the transaction amount of each of the

TR EAAEEFAZHEREIFINRS

aforesaid continuing connected transactions of the Group during the Year 2N —_T—ZFEHFHEMRMNFEE LR
and the relevant approved annual caps for 2010:
Transaction
amount for
the year ended
31 December Annual caps
Transactions 2010 for 2010
BE-_T-TF
+=A=+-H —T-%F
x5 ILEEENRZSE EELER
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AREBTT) (AR®ETT)
Sale of motors and electronic and electric ) % MEEHEEREEHK 3,478,882 3,523,000
components for electrical household appliances FEREREERERVR
and raw materials to Midea Group
Purchase of raw materials and processed raw MEMHEBRBERVE R 236,431 320,000
materials and motors samples from Midea Group A2 0N TR MR R T A
Purchase of raw materials from Wellkey | B A R BB SR R — 215,000
Logistic services fees paid to Annto ME SRR & 34 10,000
Financial services provided by the Finance Company 81 % A &) 12 4t /9 81 75 AR 7
— Deposit (daily maximum outstanding balance — R (BEETFE R 175,606 461,000
including accrued interest and handling fees) FEENBARSEH)
— Loan (daily maximum outstanding balance — BEXBEEEFFNER - 609,000
including accrued interest and handling fees) FREEBNBAGRRELR)
— Bills discounting (face value of the bills discounted) — ZiE8EIR (KB N ZIEEE) - 1,590,000
— Guarantee — ER - 500,000
— Foreign exchange (US$’000) — HNE(FZETT) - 164,000
Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by certain ~ AEBEE TR E QG RIE Ll BEREBEE_T—

members of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2010

pursuant to the agreements mentioned above, which constituted %(M%Q%ﬁﬁiﬁ
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are 15 -
disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEZERERDA

EET_A=TBUFEFTL2EREHITX
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R A W AR M REAT BR o
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to the Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group disclosed
above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements with respect to the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions of the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of guarantees given for
the loan facilities granted to the associates by the Group amounted to
HK$533 million which exceeded 8% of the assets ratio as defined in Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. A pro-forma combined statement of financial
position of the associates, in which the Group has a 49% equity interest,
as at 31 December 2010 is presented below:

W% £ iR AISE13.221R (e H 1k 28

i Ti-i— A=t—B XAEEHBERQ
75% FREMBHRZEREABEREE

533,000,0007T -+ #8 & kT R Rl 814.07(1) & A 52
FEELEZ8% - RZF—BE+=A=+—8
HE AR EAAIOHREOBE DA ZBERS
MR EEFIMT

Pro-forma
combined Group’s
statement of attributable
financial position interest (49%)
HEEEM AEERE
BIRAR 165 8 25 (49%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current assets FERBEE 516,366 253,019
Current assets mENE B 655,056 320,978
Current liabilities nEAE (371,030) (181,809)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (343,962) (168,541)
Net assets BESFHE 456,430 223,651

Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in
favour of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea
and other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in
any business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and
electronic and electric components for all electrical household appliances
and any business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the
Group which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the
Group.

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010 (“Declaration”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with the
compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the Non-
competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Compliance with The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 20 to
32 for the compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
the Directors and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Welling Holding Limited
CAIl Qiwu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3% B BT 4R &

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERXKEGETMEHFR

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Welling Holding Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 57 to 183, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile  (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3% B BT 4R &

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMB KRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010
R-ZE-FF+-_F=t—H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZF—FF RIZZTNF RZETIF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+-—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T
Note (Restated) (Restated)
Bt 3 (&%) (E75))
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights EEL M AR 6 125,509 124,496 127,436
Property, plant and equipment ME - HELZB 7 875,804 699,543 571,345
Goodwill GRS 8 23,188 22,408 22,410
Investments in associates B N R IRE 10 223,651 206,966 -
Deferred income tax assets RIEFMSHEE 21 30,736 21,856 7,887
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESmEE 11 29,381 28,393 —
Prepayment for investments in TE B & R R B K
associates 13 - — 82,463
Prepayment for property, plant and i‘ﬁiﬁ M- BER
equipment RERIR 13 18,335 3,816 22,392
1,326,604 1,107,478 833,933
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 12 1,938,905 669,192 243,888
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H AWk 13 1,720,175 958,041 648,385
Due from related companies FEUR AR A B R IE 34(0) 368,590 617,880 574,456
Derivative financial instruments TEESMITE 20 25,922 25,708 —
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITER 14 118,000 49,081 61,020
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEYD 15 757,449 257,478 217124
4,929,041 2,577,380 1,744,873
Total assets BMEE 6,255,645 3,684,858 2,578,806
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable A2 S H A EGK
to the owners of the Company AREE
Share capital FREN 16 1,409,056 1,347,931 1,347,931
Other reserves H Ath 6 1 17 570,471 272,043 227,921
Accumulated losses REtEE
— Proposed final dividend — EEARERE 29 112,725 67,397 —
— Others — Hftb (184,486) (552,655) (805,210)
Total equity A 1,907,766 1,134,716 770,642
REZRERAET —F-BFEH of
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBIRKRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010
R-ZE-FF+-_F=t—H

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
NREZB—FF R_ZTThF R-ZETNLF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T
Note (Restated) (Restated)
B 3 (&%) (E%)
LIABILITIES afg
Non-current liabilities kRBHERE
Borrowings RN 18 104,364 100,000 -
Deferred income tax liabilities REMEHEaE 21 50,773 25,235 6,305
155,137 125,235 6,305
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables BN EMEMNK 19 3,409,937 2,212,592 1,322,309
Due to related companies FET AR AR FRIE 34(c) 485,020 68,048 82,069
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 20 - 902 30,635
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR aE 56,339 30,845 1,300
Borrowings B 18 241,446 112,520 365,546
4,192,742 2,424,907 1,801,859
Total liabilities A 4,347,879 2,550,142 1,808,164
Total equity and liabilities EERAEEE 6,255,645 3,684,858 2,578,806
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE (BR)FHE 736,299 162,473 (56,986)
Total assets less current liabilities B EERAETAE 2,062,903 1,259,951 776,947

The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 183 were approved

by the board of Directors on 21 March 2011 and were signed on its behalf.

Director
BE
CAl Qiwu
EHK
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt 5k L =R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010
R-ZE-FF+-_F=t—H

As at 31 December

w+=-—H=+—H
2010 2009
—EF—FF —ETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 BETRT BT T
ASSETS &aE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEREE 7 23 44
Investments in subsidiaries WEARIKRE 9 5,106,440 4,764,049
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—RHWELQF 9 100,940 98,000
5,207,403 4,862,093
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR B % E A R R 13 1,302 1,335
Dividend receivable FEU B B 120,000 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 15 1,560 217
122,862 16,552
Total assets HEE 5,330,265 4,878,645
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable FA B #HH AFEE
to the owners of the Company BAERGEE
Share capital A% A 16 1,409,056 1,347,931
Other reserves H At 7 1 17 3,794,085 3,423,894
Retained profits R H
— Proposed final dividend — EEAREBKRE 29 112,725 67,397
— Others — Hft 12,215 37,388
Total equity HEEGE 5,328,081 4,876,610
REERERAT —T-BEEH



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R Bk R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010

RoF—FE+-A=+—8

As at 31 December

mw+=-—H=+—H
2010 2009
—EF—FF —ZETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 HBET T ok abiv
LIABILITIES =i

Current liabilities HEEE
Accruals and other payables TERER K HEMEMNRK 19 2,184 2,035
Total liabilities HEE 2,184 2,035
Total equity and liabilities ELEREEES 5,330,265 4,878,645
Net current assets RSB EFHE 120,678 14,517
Total assets less current liabilities A EER REA & 5,328,081 4,876,610

The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 183 were approved
by the board of Directors on 21 March 2011 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

EFE
CAIl Qiwu
ZHK
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FelmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
HE-Z-ZHE+-_A=1+—HIHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=+—HLEE

2010 2009
—E—-FF —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BETT BT T
Revenue & 5 7,798,886 4,824,116
Cost of goods sold $HEE @K A (6,816,402) (4,124,667)
Gross profit EFH 982,484 699,449
Other gains — net Haplhas — F5E 22 29,023 39,717
Selling and marketing costs & I T 35 HE B R AR (106,418) (101,739)
Administrative expenses THHAX (227,698) (200,507)
Operating profit HERE 677,391 436,920
Finance costs & KA 25 (30,546) (23,035)
Finance income BB A 25 4,307 4,341
Finance costs — net AKX — FE 25 (26,239) (18,694)
Share of profits of associates R /NETR D | 10 9,269 4,808
Profit before income tax 30 B& T % Bt A0 0 E 660,421 423,034
Income tax expense FRiE B F 2 26 (128,191) (69,259)
Profit for the year attributable tothe ~ FA T HH A EIEE NS
owners of the Company 532,230 353,775
Earnings per share for profit EATHBEANELEFEZ
attributable to the owners of the BREM  UEREWMTIR
Company, expressed in HK cents per
share
— basic —EXK 28 3.82 2.62
— diluted —#E 28 3.78 2.61

Details of proposed final dividend payable to the owners of the Company Bt AR RIEE AEZE KPR E ZF 1B R
are set out in note 29. 129 o

2

The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated MR EF67E=183HE 2 M Atz A M EHREKk 2 — &

o

D

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEEWER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
HE-Z-ZHE+-_A=1+—HIHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=+—HLEE

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Profit for the year EEMH 532,230 353,775

Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEbzs:

Currency translation differences EEENEZR 58,218 30

Other comprehensive income for the year FEHbZ@ILE 58,218 30
Total comprehensive income for the year AT HBANEILEE

attributable to the owners of the Company 2w ELEE 590,448 353,805

The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated R E67E183B 2M T A& M EHEx 2 —

o

2

D

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEEDREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
HE-T-TEt-A=tALEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EATHAANEW
Share Other Accumulated Total
capital reserves losses equity
BEx HbEE RitisE #ndsE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT T
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-BEAE—HA—BZH&R 1,347,931 227,921 (805,210) 770,642
Comprehensive income: 2miis:
Profit for the year FEFNH - - 353,775 353,775
Other comprehensive income: Hith2muss:
Currency translation differences EHBERESE — 30 — 30
Total comprehensive income 2EUWEEE — 30 353,775 353,805
Transaction with owners: HEANETHRS:
Transfer to statutory reserves S NG — 33,823 (33,823) —
Employee share option scheme 1B B iR 2l
— value of services provided — FIRERE2EE - 10,269 - 10,269
Total transaction with owners HEANETHXSEHE — 44,092 (33,823) 10,269
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-FTALE+=A
=+—HZ&68 1,347,931 272,043 (485,258) 1,134,716
Representing: HER:
2009 proposed final dividend —ETAFEHERPRES 67,397
Others HAb (552,655)
Accumulated losses at 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+ZA
=t+—HZZR:EE (485,258)
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZTFFR



64

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEERBIYR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

BE—T-TF+-fA=+—RALEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EATI A ANEL
Share Other Accumulated Total
capital reserves losses equity
BE HiGEE RitisE #ndsE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT #EETR EETRT #EETR
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-T—-FFE—A—B2Z2&8H% 1,347,931 272,043 (485,258) 1,134,716
Comprehensive income: 2wk
Profit for the year FEFE - - 532,230 532,230
Other comprehensive income: Hitb 2wl
Currency translation differences EHEREZR - 58,218 - 58,218
Total comprehensive income 2HESEE - 58,218 532,230 590,448
Transaction with owners: HBEAANETHXS:
Transfer to statutory reserves EEREETHE - 48,311 (48,311) =
Issue of ordinary shares FoEBERGD
— proceeds from shares issued — BEITROMAERIE 60,000 192,000 - 252,000
— share issuance expenses — BIRMAX - (6,557) - (6,557)
Employee share option scheme BBl E
— value of services provided — TRt R < BE - 5,841 - 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued — BITROAEHRE 1,125 615 — 1,740
Dividend relating to 2009 ZZETENFERS - - (70,422) (70,422)
Total transaction with owners MEBNETZXSER 61,125 240,210 (118,733) 182,602
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-_B—T&
+=ZA=t+—BZ24&6% 1,409,056 570,471 (71,761) 1,907,766
Representing: HBER:
2010 proposed final dividend —E-EFERFARPRE 112,725
Others A (184,486)
Accumulated losses at 31 December 2010 R —ZF+=-_A=+—H2Z
2 BB (71,761)

The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%éiﬂﬁbmi

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
HE-Z-ZHE+-_A=1+—HIHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2010 2009
—E—FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Note (Restated)
k=3 (E251)
Cash flows from operating activities HEITHzRER=E
Cash generated from operations KEEEX RS 30(a) 636,497 580,889
Interest paid ERFLE (30,895) (22,869)
Interest received BT & 4,307 4,341
Income tax paid BRI (86,414) (34,758)
Net cash generated from operating activities & & FEEL 2 H S F5HE 523,495 527,603
Cash flows from investing activities BETBHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B EW¥ - MEK R E (147,920) (166,547)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEME  BEMZMFE
equipment FTiS 5008 30(b) 13,488 8,474
Increase in construction-in-progress EEIIREM (122,956) (58,577)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayment for FENME BEREE
property, plant and equipment FKIE LN, 5 (14,519) 18,576
Decrease in prepayment for investments in TERT B & A B4R & BB R
associates - 82,463
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEAHEESRMEE
assets - (28,393)
Acquisition of associates g3 - W/NC] = (202,158)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMACE2FE (271,907) (346,162)
RELZRERAT —B-BFEFH 65



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
BE-TTF+-_A=+HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2010 2009
—E—FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Note (Restated)
P 5 (E251)
Cash flows from financing activities REETHZ2HERE
Proceeds from borrowings ERFTIS A 285,423 371,608
Repayments of borrowings EEER (152,133) (524,634)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BRI TR (M),
deposits Vo (68,919) 11,939
Dividends paid to the owners of the NFERREBAZRE
Company (70,422) —
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITEBRATBRIE 253,740 —
Shares issuance expenses BITRMAX (6,557) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFBEL (TR Z
financing activities ReFRE 241,132 (141,087)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRkBEEEHEMNFEHE
equivalents 492,720 40,354
Cash and cash equivalents FUzReMReEEY
at beginning of the year 257,478 217,124
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents 3R & &KIR&ZEYIE § W= 7,251 —
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBEERIEEEYD
at end of the year 15 757,449 257,478
The notes on pages 67 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated R E67E183E Z M At & M BHREKR 2 — %

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

241

General Information
Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors and
electronic and electric components for electrical household
appliances and trade raw materials in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of
Directors on 21 March 2011.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
derivatives financial instruments.

2.1.1 Compliance with HKFRS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@

Business combination and transaction with non-
controlling interests

HKFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business combinations’, and
consequential amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 27, ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’, HKAS 28, ‘Investments in associates’, and
HKAS 31, ‘Interests in joint ventures’, are effective
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations but with some significant
changes compared with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments
to purchase a business are recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt
subsequently re-measured through the statement of
comprehensive income. There is a choice on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. All
acquisition-related costs are expensed.

HKAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is
no change in control and these transactions will no longer
result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Above changes in accounting policy had no impact to the
Group, as the Group has no non-controlling interests, nor
had any business combination in 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©)

Lease of land

HKAS 17 (amendment), 'Leases’, deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease
classification. As a result, leases of land should be classified
as either finance or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, land
interest which title is not expected to pass to the Group by
the end of the lease term was classified as operating lease
under “Leasehold land and land use rights”, and amortised
over the lease term.

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning 1 January 2010 in accordance with
the effective date and transitional provisions of the
amendment. The Group has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land and land use rights as at 1 January
2010 on the basis of information existing at the inception of
those leases. As a result of the reassessment, the Group has
not reclassified any leasehold land and land use rights. All
leasehold land and land use rights held by the Group are in
the PRC and are classified as operating lease, which is the
same to the Group’s accounting policy before the adoption
of HKAS 17 (amendment).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(©

Classification of term loans

In November 2010, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) issued Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
‘Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause’. The interpretation is effective immediately
and is a clarification of an existing standard, HKAS 1,
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. It sets out the
conclusion reached by the HKICPA that a term loan which
contains a clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time shall be classified as
a current liability in accordance with HKAS 1 irrespective of
the probability that the lender will invoke the clause without
cause.

In order to comply with the requirements of Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, the Company has changed its accounting
policy on the classification of term loans that contain a
repayment on demand clause. Under the new policy, term
loans with clauses which give the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time are classified as current
liabilities in the statement of financial position. Previously
such term loans were classified in accordance with the
agreed repayment schedule unless the Company had
breached any of the loan covenants set out in the agreement
as of the reporting date or otherwise had reason to believe
that the lender would invoke its rights under the immediate
repayment clause within the foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
by re-presenting the opening balances at 1 January 2009,
with consequential reclassification adjustments to
comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
reclassification has no effect on reported profit or loss, total
comprehensive income or equity for any period presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

@

Derecognition of bank accepted bills

In prior years, the Group, before it being acquired by Midea
Group Co., Ltd (“Midea”), now its ultimate holding company,
used the cash flow variability model under HKAS 39,
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to
analyse whether the Group has transferred or retained
substantially all risks and rewards for the transferred financial
instruments. Under the cash flow variability model, the bank
accepted bills, including those discounted to commercial
banks, or endorsed to suppliers of the Group for settling
trade payables, were derecognised upon maturity.

Having undertaken a comprehensive review of the policies of
the other businesses in the home appliance industry, and the
fellow subsidiaries of Midea, particular those operating in
China, the Group’s management decided to change the
accounting policy to the fair value variability model, which is
another acceptable method under HKAS 39. The Group
believes that this change will bring the policy in line with other
major home appliance companies operating in the same
market with similar operating environment; align more closely
the public available financial information to those used by the
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

@

Derecognition of bank accepted bills (Continued)
Accordingly the accounting policy has been changed during
the year ended 31 December 2010 to the fair value variability
model under HKAS 39 in analysing the derecognition of bank
accepted bills, to reflect on how the management views the
substance of the risk of default related to the bank accepted
bills and therefore to provide more relevant information to the
users of the consolidated financial statements.

After the change of the accounting policy to use the fair value
variability model to analyse whether the Group has
transferred or retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the transferred financial instruments, the bank accepted
bills would be derecognised upon being discounted to
commercial banks, or upon being endorsed to the suppliers
of the Group for settling trade payables. That is the time that
the management believes the primary risks and rewards have
been transferred with the assessment using fair value
variability model.

This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. Certain adjustments have been made to the
comparative information to reflect this change in accounting
policy. The effect of the change, for each financial statement
line items affected, is summarised in note 2.1.2 (g) below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TES:BEME(Z

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212EFIBERIEES ZHE (E)

(Continued)

()  As aresult of the changes in accounting policies mentioned (e) ER Lt E21.20) & (d) B 2 5K
above in notes 2.1.2(c) and (d), certain adjustments have REH HREMNSIEHETHE -
been made to the comparative information. The effect of the ZEEHYENBRENET —EM
changes, for each financial statement line items affected, are M

summarised below:

()  Effect on the consolidated statement of () HZFTFTNLF—-—H—BHEK
financial position as at 1 January 2009 SRR R &
Changes in accounting policy
BHBENES

Derecognition

As previously Classification of of bank
reported term loan accepted bills  As restated

#‘g _U: ﬁ& N ﬁ:‘% 17
ZHEIRE BHENRSE B ER =gl

(note 2.1.2(c)) (note 2.1.2(d))

(3E21.20)  (FFFE21.2(d)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E b W EK 929,579 — (281,194) 648,385
Due from related companies & W BA B R R IR 1,074,328 — (499,872 574,456
Current assets RBEE 2,525,939 — (781,066) 1,744,873
Total assets M E 3,359,872 — (781,0606) 2,578,806
Trade and other payables Bo5hHMENRK 1,705,350 — (383,041) 1,322,309
Due to related companies JE 1< A B 2 B 5B 174,032 — (91,963) 82,069
Borrowings — current a3k — & 611,608 60,000 (806,062) 365,546
Current liabilities RBEE 2,522,925 60,000 (781,066) 1,801,859
Borrowings — non-current B —FERH 60,000 (60,000) — —
Non-current liabilities g =R 66,305 (60,000) — 6,305
Total liabilities BEfs 2,589,230 — (781,066) 1,808,164
Total equity and liabilities EERAEEE 3,359,872 — (781,066) 2,578,806

Net current assets/(liabilities) REIZE (BE)
i 3,014 (60,000) — (56,986)
Total assets less current BEERRTERE

liabilities 836,947 (60,000) — 776,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRMRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

©  (Continued)

(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2009

ERTBRBIE(E)

21 GUEEE)
212EFBERBKEFZEE (E)

€ (&)

i) H-_FETNFT-_A=+
*Ezmmﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂj{/}%%mﬁ/
488

=

Changes in accounting policy

FEBENEH

Derecognition

As previously Classification of of bank
reported termloan  accepted bills  As restated

I RERIRTT
ZHEIRE BHERSE BB E7

(note 2.1.2(c)) (note 2.1.2(d))

(FF3E21.20)  (B¥sE21.2(d)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T ST
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E b WK 1,241,138 - (283,097) 958,041
Due from related companies FEUL BB N B FRIR 1,248,138 - (630,258) 617,880
Current assets HEEE 3,490,735 — (913,355) 2,577,380
Total assets BEE 4,598,213 — (913,355) 3,684,858
Trade and other payables B 5K H MR 2,598,798 — (386,206) 2,212,592
Due to related companies JE 1<) B B R A 178,615 — (110,567) 68,048
Borrowings — current B — mE 469,102 60,000 (416,582) 112,520
Current liabilities HREEE 3,278,262 60,000 (913,355) 2,424,907
Borrowings — non-current &k — EM B 160,000 (60,000) — 100,000
Non-current liabilities EFBHER 185,235 (60,000) — 125,235
Total liabilities HEE 3,463,497 — (913,355) 2,550,142
Total equity and liabilities EERBEEHE 4,598,213 — (913,355) 3,684,858
Net current assets MENEEFR 212,473 (60,000) - 152,473

Total assets less current BMEERRHER

liabilities 1,319,951 (60,000) — 1,259,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TEE:TBEMEE)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EEEBEEE)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212EFIBERIEES ZHE (E)
(Continued)
e  (Continued) e (%)
(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of iy H—_FT—FTF+-A=+
financial position as at 31 December 2010 —HEEV BRI KN
w5
Changes in accounting policy
BT B R & B
Derecognition of
Classification of bank accepted
term loan bills
4RI TR IR 1T
BFHERNE &R =
(note 2.1.2(c)) (note 2.1.2(d))
(P 8%2.1.2(c)) (Pt £2.1.2(d))
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2 5 K H ) & U 7R 2 - (239,936)
Decrease in due from related companies & 4 B8 B A 5 7% 38 R - (1,356,794)
Decrease in trade and other payables B E MRS TR - (949,595)
Decrease in due to related companies & <+ 8 B 2 71 2038 8 - (97,208)
Decrease in borrowings — current B — KB - (549,927)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EBEMEZE)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212EFIBERIEES ZHE (E)
(Continued)
(e)  (Continued) (e (&)
(v)  These changes do not have any impact on the vy %EZHUBFHEZ2IHEKRZ
consolidated income statement, the consolidated AREFEERER Re2EK
statement of comprehensive income, or the earnings % 7% ok B AR A M) & R R AT A
per share information, relating to the periods presented Ta -

and those before.

() New and amended standards, and interpretations N R-ZFE-—FF—H-HEFEZ
mandatory for the first time for the financial year BB F JE B X IR A 1A B AT
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant B 7N 5 B A B 2 R AT R AR & AT
to the Group (although they may affect the BRI R EEEREAE
accounting for future transactions and events) EARXZREE @ )%)
. HK(IFRIC) 17, ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to . BE (BB BRERELZES)

owners’ (effective on or after 1 July 2009). The BUTRIMEBEADKIERS
interpretation was published in November 2008. This EEIR-_ZZTNFLHA—H
interpretation provides guidance on accounting for FZBER) - ZEZRERZ
arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash ZENF+—AEM - HER
assets to shareholders either as a distribution of BREBRARROEIFERSE
reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5 has also been EEBREDIRIKENZH
amended to require that assets are classified as held M EIERMEES - B
for distribution only when they are available for IR ELERESF RIS
distribution in their present condition and the fEIE BEREEARERAT
distribution is highly probable. AN RS D EAERE
7 /)E °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

")

21

FESHBORBIEE)

EREEE)

212EFBERBKEFZEE (E)

New and amended standards, and interpretations

mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant

to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

) R-ZF-FF-H—HRHKBEZ
BB F B B A #IER A 1E B AT
HI N B AR BT AT R A AT
ERAIARZE(BERFA
EORRGREFEZ &7 75)%)

(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 18, ‘Transfers of assets from customers’,
effective for transfer of assets received on or after 1
July 2009. This interpretation clarifies the requirements
of HKFRSs for agreements in which an entity receives
from a customer an item of property, plant and
equipment that the entity must then use either to
connect the customer to a network or to provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or
services (such as a supply of electricity, gas or water).
In some cases, the entity receives cash from a
customer that must be used only to acquire or
construct the item of property, plant, and equipment in
order to connect the customer to a network or provide
the customer with ongoing access to a supply of
goods or services (or to do both).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ effective 1 January 2009. The amendment
clarifies that the potential settlement of a liability by the
issue of equity is not relevant to its classification as
current or non current. By amending the definition of
current liability, the amendment permits a liability to be
classified as non-current (provided that the entity has
an unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of
cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the
accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that the
entity could be required by the counterparty to settle
in shares at any time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®

New and amended standards, and interpretations

mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant

to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

. HKFRS 2 (amendments), ‘Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions’, effective from 1 January
2010. In addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC) 8, ‘Scope

of HKFRS 2’, and HK(IFRIC) 11, ‘HKFRS 2

and treasury share transactions’, the amendments
expand on the guidance in HK(IFRIC) 11 to address
the classification of group arrangements that were not

covered by that interpretation.

o First annual improvements project issued in October
2008 in respect of HKFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations’ and
consequential amendment to HKFRS 1 ‘First-time
adoption’ regarding the plan to sell the controlling

interest in a subsidiary.

— Group
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRMRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(f)  New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

. Second annual improvement project issued in May
2009, in respect of:

— HK(IFRIC) 9, ‘Reassessment of embedded
derivatives’ and HKAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’,
effective 1 July 2009. This amendment to
HK(IFRIC) 9 requires an entity to assess whether
an embedded derivative should be separated
from a host contract when the entity reclassifies
a hybrid financial asset out of the ‘fair value
through profit or loss’ category. This
assessment is to be made based on
circumstances that existed on the later of the
date the entity first became a party to the
contract and the date of any contract
amendments that significantly change the cash
flows of the contract. If the entity is unable to
make this assessment, the hybrid instrument
must remains classified as at fair value through
profit or loss in its entirety.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation’ effective 1 July 2009. This
amendment states that, in a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation, qualifying
hedging instruments may be held by any entity
or entities within the Group, including the foreign
operation itself, as long as the designation,
documentation and effectiveness requirements
of HKAS 39 that relate to a net investment
hedge are satisfied. In particular, the Group
should clearly document its hedging strategy
because of the possibility of different
designations at different levels of the Group.

HKAS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible assets’,
effective 1 January 2010. The amendment
clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value of
an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination and permits the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset if each asset
has similar useful economic lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TES:BEMEZ

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

HKAS 36 (@amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’,
effective 1 January 2010. The amendment
clarifies that the largest cash-generating unit (or
group of units) to which goodwill should be
allocated for the purposes of impairment testing
is an operating segment, as defined by
paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’
(that is, before the aggregation of segments with
similar economic characteristics).

HKFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’. The
amendment clarified that HKFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies
that the general requirement of HKAS 1 still
apply, in particular paragraph 15 (to achieve a
fair presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of
estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TES:BEME(Z
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)
. Other change in the second annual improvement
project issued in May 2009, in respect of:

- HKAS 39 regarding treating loan prepayment
penalties as closely related derivatives, cash
flow hedge accounting, and scope exemption
for business combination contracts;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

241

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

84

(Continued)

(f)  New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)
(Continued)

- HKFRS 8 regarding the disclosure of information
about segment assets;

— HKAS 1 (Amendment) regarding the current/
non-current classification of convertible
instruments; and

- HKAS 7 regarding the classification of
expenditures on unrecognised assets.

(9  New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not yet effective for the
accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group
. HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, issued in November

2009. This standard is the first step in the process to
replace HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement’. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuring financial
assets and is likely to affect the Group’s accounting for
its financial assets. The standard is not applicable until
1 January 2013 but is available for early adoption. The
Group is not yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©

New standards, amendments and interpretations

have been issued but are not yet effective for the

accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and

have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)
. HKAS 24 (revised),

January 2011. Earlier application, in whole or in part, is

permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the
definition of a related party and removes the
requirement for government-related entities to disclose
details of all transactions with the government and
other government-related entities. The Group will apply
the revised standard from 1 January 2011. When the
revised standard is applied, the Group and the
Company will need to disclose any transactions
between its subsidiaries and its associates. The Group
is currently putting systems in place to capture the
necessary information. It is, therefore, not possible at
this stage to disclose the impact, if any, of the revised

standard on the related party disclosures.

‘Related party disclosures’, issued
in November 2009. It supersedes HKAS 24, ‘Related
party disclosures’, issued in 2003. HKAS 24 (revised)
is mandatory for periods beginning on or after 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EBEMEE)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EBEEE)
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212EFIBERIEES ZE(E)

(Continued)

(@  New standards, amendments and interpretations @ EFELHER - EFTRZFE
have been issued but are not yet effective for the ER-_F—FF—HA—HE
accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and ATRIMET 0 7R 4 3 - K5 [F I A
have not been early adopted by the Group 1A (4E)

(Continued)

. ‘Classification of rights issues’ (amendment to HKAS . Rz BEI(EHEBEE
32), issued in October 2009. The amendment applies RIIEE325% 2 1&37]) E/\\\_Egﬂ
to annual periods beginning on or after 1 February FHA%EM- - ZBITBE_F—
2010. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment TFERA—HI 2 ERBZF
addresses the accounting for rights issues that are EHEAEN DHRFER -
denominated in a currency other than the functional ZAEET AR A —EEEM
currency of the issuer. Provided certain conditions are EBITAZEEEFERZ
met, such rights issues are now classified as equity SEHE - BERZERTES
regardless of the currency in which the exercise price 1'7% "o RIRESIERAER
is denominated. Previously, these issues had to be TRITEENNBEERE
accounted for as derivative liabilities. The amendment ﬁL o ZHIRE ML EH R LA
applies retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8 BUTEBBAR - ZEITRIE
‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates BB GTHEAESR @ BE
and errors’. The Group will apply this amended AT EPRREETE
standard from 1 January 2011. WER  AEEKAE=_Z——

F-A—HRERALKEE
Al o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EBEMEE)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EBEEE)

212EFBERBKEFZEE (E)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(@ New standards, amendments and interpretations @ EZFHIER - 1ZFTREZE
have been issued but are not yet effective for the ER-—F—FF—HA—HE

GRG0 2R A 5K - AN 5E B ) A
R IR (&)

accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments’, effective 1 July 2010. The
interpretation clarifies the accounting by an entity
when the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and result in the entity issuing equity instruments to a
creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part of the
financial liability (debt for equity swap). It requires a
gain or loss to be recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments should be measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The
Group will apply this interpretation from 1 January
2011. It is not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s or the Company’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TES:BEMEZ
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EBEEE)

212EFBERBKEFZEE (E)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

ERLFER - EFTR2FE
ER-_F-—FF—HA—HME
FHA A0 K A 5K - AN 2E [E ) AR
TEFIRA (B)

(@  New standards, amendments and interpretations ©
have been issued but are not yet effective for the
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010 and have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

‘Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement’
(amendments to HK (IFRIC) — Int 14). The
amendments correct an unintended consequence of
HK (IFRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19
defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements

— The limit on a

and their interaction’. Without the amendments,
entities are not permitted to recognise as an asset
some voluntary prepayments for minimum funding
contributions. This was not intended when HK (IFRIC)
— Int 14 was issued, and the amendments correct
this. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning 1 January 2011. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively to the earliest comparative period
presented. The Group will apply these amendments
for the financial reporting period commencing on 1
January 2011. It is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s or the Company’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 TES:BEME(Z
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EBEEE)

212EFBERKEFZEE (F)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

ERHIEL  ETRBE
ER-F—FF—F—AHB
R R FEETR

(9 New standards, amendments and interpretations ©)
have been issued but are not yet effective for the
accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and

are to be effective from accounting periods on or after
1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, in respect of:

HKFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business combinations’,
regarding Transition requirements for contingent
consideration from a business combination that
occurred before the effective date of the revised
HKFRS, Measurement of non-controlling
interests and Un-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards;

HKFRS 1 ‘First time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards’, regarding
accounting policy changes in the year of
adoption, revaluation basis as deemed cost,
and use of deemed cost for operations subject
to rate regulation;

HKFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’
regarding clarifications of disclosures;

have not been early adopted by the Group RRERP (E)
(Continued)
. Annual improvements project issued in May 2010, that . R-_ZE—ZFRAEHRNGTH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EBEMEE)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EBEEE)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 212EFIBERIEES ZE(E)

(Continued)

(@  New standards, amendments and interpretations @ EFELHFER - EFTRZFE
have been issued but are not yet effective for the ER-_FE-—FF—H—HAE
accounting periods beginning 1 January 2010 and ATRBET 0 7R 4 3 - K5 E I A
have not been early adopted by the Group IR (E)

(Continued)

—  HKAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’ —  BEGFEA IR
regarding clarification of statement of changes BWMEMIN®R] - BAEY
in equity; EmSBRNEE:

—  HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial — BB ERETRIER
statements’ regarding transition requirements ERBIMBHRE] B
for amendments made as a result of HKAS 27 A EE g &R E27
‘Consolidated and Separate Financial VAR = X AL el
Statements’; RER] EERBIE TR

F

—  HK(FRIC) — Int 13 ‘Customer loyalty — BEEBERBERERE
programmes’ regarding fair value of award ZEg) — REFINR
credit. (EFAHEE A&

BAEBEREI QAT
(& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.2

(a

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

() Application of acquisition method

Except for the acquisitions under common control, the Group
uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement (note 2.6).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2.2

(a

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Application of merger accounting

For acquisition under common control, the Group has been
using the principles of merger accounting as prescribed in
Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 ‘Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations’ issued by the HKICPA
(‘HKAG 5’). The net assets of the subsidiaries acquired under
common control were combined using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
was recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.
The adjustment to eliminate the share capital of entities
acquired under common control and the investment cost has
been recorded as merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements
include the financial position, results and cash flows of the
companies comprising the Group as if the current group
structure had been in existence throughout the year, or since
their respective dates of incorporation/establishment.

Consolidation of subsidiaries

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.2

(a

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

(iv)  Accounting for subsidiaries in separate financial

Statement

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (note 2.7). Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2.2

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses
(note 2.7). The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.3

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the board of Directors that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

@

®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”), which
is different from the Company’s functional currency of
Renminbi (“RMB”), in view of the shares of the Company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement within ‘other gains — net ".
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

®)

©

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available for
sale are included in the available for sale reserve in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of end of the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.4

2.5

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 EENBEBMEE
(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 HEBRE(E)
©)  Group companies (Continued) © FEEIAF(E)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the REARER REBHNEB 2R
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of BEFE ERLREMAEHHED
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as RECEBIAMEE CERZRE
hedges of such investments, are taken to other B AEMEERE - EH D HESR
comprehensive income . When a foreign operation is partially HESINEBT  BRELEZEER
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were Wk o BEaNER AR AL
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement ElmABEL D
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition WEEIINEBMEAZEERRAT
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the ERAEHRAEINERBZEENE
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. & WKKMmERBE -
Property, plant and equipment 25 Y¥ - -BEXRRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less Y~ BB KRR E L AR T E RO
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes BEEEINER BELrRASREREZEEE
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the HEEGEZRX -
items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or HEKANETEZBERBE 2 RREEF
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is mAARERARNER  MZER KA
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will AfHER FeeREEEEZREESK
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. MRABYAEWER) HERIHZ
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other FEBESTEER FMBEEMBEERRE
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement HAEREEAZHERAMARR K ZRIME -
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using ME BERSBZHMERBATNERA
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over FRFAKARESEDBEFGER
their estimated useful lives, as follows: FHE
Estimated useful lives
st ol A E
Buildings gF 10-30 years
Fixture and furniture RERKA 3-5 years &
Plant and machinery % 55 Ko # 25 10-20 years 4F
Motor vehicles AE 5-10 years F
Electronic and other equipment BEFREMEE 3-5 years £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2.5

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred and machinery pending to installation plus
interest capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of
property, plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates
is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivable, and
available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.1 Classification (Continued)

100

@

®)

©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement
of financial position (notes 2.13 and 2.14).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within ‘Other gains — net’, in
the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement as ‘gains and losses from
investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010

2.9

ERTBRBE(E

HFEMIA

EREENBEREA AR &G EEE
ERTBELRNRRFEEELERRAR
BREEMBEHAER TUREHE ARF
HAIRN M BN KRATIER

210 &S ERE

@) AEHKAS Rz &E
$¢IEK*¢%%¥ﬁ%Kﬁ§

ﬁﬁ@cmm%ﬁmﬁéé'ﬁa
ERLE-—HASZHEHERELR
B2EBERIBEREM)
ERE4HAE GG ZESZA
TRMEEZHARKRASREBK
FE AZERZACREES®
BAYERE R HBRBERE -

iy e
Mm% &

AEERFEEERALBRBERE

ZEBRBRZBER:

e BITARRBEABINEBEEWR
7R 2

e EH - flandmMsiE RA B
REER

o ERABRENESEITEAM
MSER -

REBEFEFEHR
BER-

BHBAREZE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
separate consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the separate consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

2.1

212

213

214

2.15

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or

options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.16

217

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

218

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

@

®)

Retirement benefits obligation

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make
contributions to a state-sponsored defined contribution
scheme for the Group’s local staff on a monthly basis
pursuant to laws of the PRC and relevant regulations issued
by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a
termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of employees expected
to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
scheme, under which the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted;

o including any market performance conditions;

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investments in
subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.21

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure
loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.22 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. The
fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero
because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the
guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is
recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on
experience of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by the judgement of management. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated income statement within other
operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of the associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment
in the financial statements of the Company.

2.23 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminated sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

@  Sales of finished goods and raw materials
Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised
when a Group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and collectibility of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.25 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.26 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.1

(a)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value

interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group

uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk

exposures.

Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily with respect to HK$, United States
dollar (“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from future
commercial transactions, entities in the Group enter into
forward contracts, transacted with the commercial banks.
The directors are in the opinion that the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk is manageable.

At 31 December 2010, if HK$ has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$5,890,000
(2009: HK$3,016,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HK$-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2010, if USD has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$1,958,000
(2009: HK$2,332,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.1

(a

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2010, if EUR has weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$8,439,000
(2009: HK$2,112,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. All the borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During 2010
and 2009, the Group’s long-term borrowings at variable rate
were denominated in HK$ and USD.

The Company’s loans to subsidiaries and amounts due from/
(to) subsidiaries were issued at fixed rates and interest free
respectively, and expose the Company to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Directors are of the opinion the interest rate risk is not
material as at 31 December 2010.

At 31 December 2010, if interest rates on long-term
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$199,000 (2009: HK$58,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

3.1

(a

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Price risk
The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly due to

(i)

the fluctuations in prices of copper and aluminium, which are
key raw materials to the Group’s products. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the derivatives
market, and through certain clause in contracts with our
customers to enable the Group to have the flexibility to pass
the increases in raw material costs to the customers.

At 31 December 2010, if the copper and aluminium price had
been 5% higher/lower with other variables held constant, the
pre-tax profit for the year would have been of HK$5,196,000
(2009: HK$9,915,000) highet/lower, representing the change
in fair value of copper and aluminium derivatives at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
derivative financial instruments, due from related parties and trade
and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalent, pledged bank deposits and
derivative financial instruments, management manages the credit
risk by transacting with state-owned financial institutions and
reputable commercial banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The maximum exposure to the credit risk
before collateral held or other credit enhancements relating to cash
and cash equivalent, pledged bank deposits and derivative financial
instruments were their carrying value as disclosed in note 15, note
14 and note 20 respectively as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.1

(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors.
Individual credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit
quality. Given the constant repayment history, the directors are in
the opinion that the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

For financial guarantees contracts provided for the associates, the
Group monitors the credit quality of the associates by taking into
account their financial position and business development plan. As
at 31 December 2010, the directors are in the opinion that the risk
of default by the associates is low. The maximum exposure to the
credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
relating to financial guarantee was the face value as disclosed in
note 33 as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities and net-settled financial derivative financial liabilities into

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the

end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

3

3.1

(c)

BA 75 L b 3 (4F)
MEBEERBRERGE)

REE 2B (E)

TERAMAEARBEBHEAZAHE
HE M T HIR R A B B A R 2 AT A
SHABRFEHSRITERBAETE -
REMBEZSENANRBRRADRE -

cash flows.
Less than Between
The Group X&EHE 1year 1and2years Over2years
—FEUT —EEWE WMENE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BB TIT BB T T BT T
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—ZH+-_A=+—H
Borrowings & 246,035 98,812 7,037
Trade and other payables 5N EMERMRK 3,409,937 = =
Due to related companies JFE 1< A B 2 B FROB 485,020 = =
At 31 December 2009 (restated) —EENF+ZA=+—H
(E )
Borrowings &3 116,069 1,629 101,497
Trade and other payables f’f%&ﬁi\fﬁﬁﬁ#\ 2,212,592 - -
Due to related companies FETEAEE AR5 68,048 — —
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 902 - -
At 1 January 2009 (restated) RZEZNF—A—H(E?Y)
Borrowings R 382,639 - -
Trade and other payables B 5N EH MR 1,322,309 — —
Due to related companies FETRAEE A B 5RIE 82,069 — —
Derivative financial instruments TEE R IE: 30,635 — —

Of the HK$60,000,000 borrowings disclosed in the 31 December
2009 time band “less than 1 year”, the Group intended to repay in

the fourth quarter 2011 in according to the bank loan repayment

schedule.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GFEUBHRRME
3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HMBEKEREZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HBERKRER(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEEE)
Less than Between
The Company AT 1year 1and2years Over2years
— 0T —S$EWME mELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZF+_A=+—H
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A & HE M EMR 2,184 - -
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R HMEMR 2,035 — —
For the drawn down component of the guarantee bank loans of the AEBERBOERRENIHATERI &
Group, the contractual maturity dates of the maximum amount that A& %A B 58761000 (—FIAT) B
can be called is that HK$58,761,000 being less than 1 year, 75,802,0007T (— 5 & 7 ) & # #£170,408,0007T
HK$75,802,000 between 1 and 5 years and HK$170,408,000 over (AFENR E)NZETNF: B #27,8250007T (—
5 years (2009: HK$27,825,000 between 1 and 5 years). FEFERE)) -

HREZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE
3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 MBEKERE)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BEXEMER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the AEFBZERAERRR  DREASHIZ
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide FECEEERBLEE RN UBRE
return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to HROEm - REREEMREREAZN
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. W WHERREZERNEEUREERK
o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may RERFRIABRERNGERE ~EE A %7
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. FROIEEEENREERS -
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital HER H\ﬁﬁ NG CAREBEFNABAELRE
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group’s strategy for the year B EERHA ﬁzﬁ ZIKE EEaz—_T-%
ended 31 December 2010 was to maintain a gearing ratio under F+-_AZ+ " HBLEEENRBAREE
75% or had a net cash position. This ratio was calculated as net REFELEERTE%SERF fﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘)ﬁ o
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total pbE R RETE F R A & B 5 5
borrowings less pledged bank deposits and cash and cash BEBEFHAAEREBRECEMIRT ﬁ EA
equivalents. As the Group was in a net cash position as at 31 MESRFASEEY BHRAEBR-Z
December 2010 and 2009, gearing ratio was not applicable. —ZEERZBTFNEFET_AZT—HER
FReEMA  EXBELETTER -
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-ZT—FF RZZETRE RZIZETNF
+=—A=+—8B +=ZA=+—8 —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BETT BT
(restated) (restated)
(E751) (E7)
Total borrowings (note 18) fi& 5k 42 %8 (Fff 5218) 345,810 212,520 365,546
Less: Pledged bank deposits (note 14)  J& : B IR ITFER
(Bt 5E14) (118,000) (49,081) (61,020)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEED
(note 15) (B =£15) (757,449) (257,478) (217,124)
(Net cash)/net debt (R&F8E),/
(EREREE (529,639) (94,039) 87,402
Total equity Yk 1,907,766 1,134,716 770,642
Gearing ratio (%) BB EL R %) N/A N/A 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

U Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level Q).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2010.

3 MEBERERE

3.3 AF{EMHET
TE2BEBEHENE HMERIAEZA
TEE - TRASPREHRWT:

e HRBEEXRAFBZERTHHRECK
RHB)(E—R) -

e HBEREE-MZBREIN BEX
BEZABREAR AER) SR (A
REBERE)BABER(BE_HK) -

s YHREBABEMBENMEEZ
BESRBEZHAEHATABER
ZBABR(E=4) -

TEREINAEER-_ZE-—ZFF+ A=+
—HBRRAVEFEZEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H B8 E=4 st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
BEETRT BETR BETRT BETR

Assets &aE

Derivative financial instruments ESBIA

— Commodity future contracts — HEERAEYN
— Foreign exchange forward contracts ~ — & BiSMNE & 49
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESmERE
— Equity investment — ERE

9,808 = = 9,808

- 16,114 - 16,114

— — 29,381 29,381
REERARLT —ZT—ZTFEEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009.

MEBERERE

AFEME(E)
TRENAEER-FEAF T A=+
—BRATFEFEZEERAE -

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—4 £=8 E=4R @zt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BB T
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments TEemIA
— Commodity future contracts —HEEmmREN 21,270 - - 21,270
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — & BiSNE A 4 4,438 — 4,438
Available-for-sale financial assets A EeREE
— Equity investment — RERE — 28,393 28,393
Liabilities Bfs
Derivative financial instruments MEEBIA
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — R HIIMNE A 4 902 — 902

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise future
commodity contracts.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, the forward foreign exchange contracts)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

3.3

41

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level
1 and level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

The financial assets of level 3 fair value hierarchy classification as at
31 December 2010 and 2009 were the available-for-sale financial
asset, of which the changes for the year ended 31 December 2010
and 2009 are presented in note 11.

The available-for-sale financial asset represents the capital
contribution made by the Group into a private finance company as
detailed in note 11. As this company started business on 22
November 2010, its current operation only limited to attraction of
customer deposit and placement in banks which are all in short
term. The directors assessed the fair value of the equity investment
and are in the opinion that the fair value approximates its carrying
value as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

Impairment of gooawill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.6. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of certain key assumptions (note 8). Changing such
key assumptions selected by management, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

41

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of gooawill (Continued)

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flows for the micro motors business had been 1% higher than
management’s estimates (i.e. 16% instead of 15%), the recoverable
amount of goodwill would still be higher than its carrying amount
and no impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

If the estimated gross margin of the micro motors business had
been 1% lower than management’s estimates (i.e. 9% instead of
10%), the recoverable amount of goodwill would still be higher than
its carrying amount and no impairment of goodwill would be
recognised.

If the growth rate of the micro motors business had been 1% lower
than management’s estimates (i.e. 0% instead of 1%), the
recoverable amount of goodwill would still be higher than its
carrying amount and no impairment of goodwill would be
recognised.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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Segment Information

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, distribution
and selling motors and electronic and electric components for
electrical household appliance and trading of raw materials in the
PRC and overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of Directors, who
is responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance of
the operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both business and
geographic perspective. From business perspective, the Group
organised into the following main business segments:

Micro motors business — manufacture and distribution
of motors for air-conditioner
and refrigerator compressor

Washing motors business — manufacture and distribution
of motors for washing
machine, dish washer and
food processing

Raw material business — trading of raw materials

Others (previously known — manufacture and distribution
as the electronic and of transformers, resistors,
electric component shaded pole motors and
business, the name is electric bicycle motors
changed as the chief

operating decision-

makers’ internal report

has changed)

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on the profit before income tax for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 NEWERGE
5.1 Primary reporting format — business segments 51 TEREENX — (B0
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2010 are HE-Z-ZETF+-A=+—HIEEFEZ
as follows: DEERIT
Micro Washing Raw
motors motors material Segment Corporate Group
business business business Others Total  function Total
5%
MEREY AHRERER RMHER Hitt HBEE GipEe a5
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BETR EETT BETRT #EETR #%Tn BETT
Gross segment revenue 8o E 4,399,496 2,584,810 3,835,557 817,099 11,636,962 - 11,636,962
Inter-segment revenue o E i (4,457) (2,378)  (3,829,569) (1,672) (8,838,076) - (3,838,076
Revenue (from external customers) I (RENRERF) 4,395,039 2,582,432 5988 815,427 7,798,886 - 7,798,886
Operating profit/(loss) LRFE/(BE) 389,518 216,432 42,443 37,138 685,531 (8,140) 677,391
Interest expense (note (a)) FlERZ (M (@) (20,095) (2,837) (34,397) - (57,329) (4,202) (61,531)
Interest income (note (a)) F 2 WA (B 3 (@) 34,151 556 140 13 34,860 83 34,943
Exchange (loss)/gain — net EH(FB),/ % - 58 (2,100) 7,729 - (128) 5,501 (5,152) 349
Finance income/(cost) — net BEWA/(KEF) - FE 11,956 5,448 (34,257) (115)  (16,968) (9,271) (26,239)
Share of profits of associates - NGR P - - - - - 9,269 9,269
Profit/(loss) before income tax MNBFAEHAFE /(BB 401,474 221,880 8,186 37,023 668,563 (8,142) 660,421
Income tax expense HEBEY (58,919) (35,186) (2,493  (1777) (104,375  (23,816)  (128,191)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEFE/(BE) 342,555 186,694 5693 29,246 564,188 (31,958) 532,230
Segment assets ABEE 3,455,536 1,733,099 461,129 348,483 5,998,247 3,011 6,001,258
Deferred income tax assets EEMBHEAE 30,736
Investments in associates HERRRE 223,651
Total assets BEE 6,255,645
Segment liabilties HBEE 2,588,400 1,000,675 430,009 185,747 4,294,921 2185 4,207,106
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMBHERE 50,773
Total liabilities #BEfE 4,347,879
Addition of property, plant and REWE  BERR
equipment 127,514 127,837 — 15499 270,850 26 270,876
Material non-cash expenses/ EXEREBAT /(KN
(income)
Amortisation of leasehold land and A& i |2 £ F F B 34
land use right 1,689 1,328 - 225 3,242 - 3,242
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #% BERRENE
equipment 51,601 32,460 - 7,052 91,113 47 91,160
Provision for inventory obsolescence 77 & Bk B 5 N B 5 B 15 3,467 2,397 - 676 6,540 - 6,540
Reversal for impairment of trade and & 5 & E fth J& U 30
other receivables AEEE (1,268) (4,434) - (994)  (6,696) - (6,696)
Fair value gain on derivative financial  $74 & B T AR FEYRE
instruments — not settled - REE (6,164) (19,758) - - (25,922) - (25,922)
Note: Bt 3 -
(@) Inter-segment interest income and inter-segment interest expense (@) o ER A B A R B R B RSB

amounted to HK$30,636,000 were

presented.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010

included

in the amounts

30,636,000 ERIEEZINEFEN ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 NEWERGE
5.1 Primary reporting format — business segments 51 FEREEN —EBIHE)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009 are BHE_ZTZNF+_A=+—HIEFEZ
as follows: DEBE R
Micro Washing Raw
motors motors material Segment Corporate Group
business business business Others Total function Total
K&
MEREL AREUEB RIHES Hit HH@Em BB Xl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT A¥Tr BETR BB BETT
Gross segment revenue Bo ks 2,445,370 1,695,186 1,943,627 681,706 6,765,889 — 6,765,889
Inter-segment revenue LREL (1,098) (846)  (1,937,598) (2,231) (1,941,779) - (1,941,773)
Revenue (from external customers) ez CRENREF) 2,444,272 1,694,340 6,029 679475 4,824,116 - 4,824,116
Operating profit/{loss) LEFE/ (B8) 199,492 192,748 17,058 44730 454,028 (17,108) 436,920
Interest expense FEBE% (6,489) (1,809) (12,950) - (21,248) (1,621) (22,869)
Interest income FEBA 2,784 1,587 1 16 4,338 3 4,341
Exchange loss — net EXEE - 38 - (1) - - (41) (125) (166)
Finance (cost)/income — net BERAK) /WA - F8 (3,705) (313) (12,949) 16 (16,951) (1,743) (18,694)
Share of profits of associates FEENFFIE - - - - - 4,808 4,808
Profit/(loss) before income tax MNBRAEHAMFE/(B8) 195,787 192,435 4,109 44746 437,077 (14,043) 423,034
Income tax expense FBHAX (28,266) (20,260) (1,532) (3,635) (53,693 (15,566) (69,259)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE/(B#B) 167,521 172,175 2,577 41,111 383,384 (29,609) 353,775
Segment assets (restated) AHBEE(ET) 1,655,816 1,154,552 369,461 274,352 3,454,181 1,855 3,456,036
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 21,856
Investments in associates BENRRE 206,966
Total assets (restated) BEE(E) 3,684,858
Segment liabilities (restated) HEBE(E 1,225,350 789,242 357,185 151,097 2,522,874 2,033 2,524,907
Deferred income tax liabilities ERFEHEE 25,235
Total liabilities (restated) BaR(ES) 2,550,142
Addition of property, plant and REWE BERR
equipment 139,205 78,127 - 7786 225118 6 225124
Material non-cash expenses/ EXEBREBE (KN
(income)
Amortisation of leasehold land and HELWRIHERARES
land use right 1,389 1,313 - 221 2,923 - 2,923
Depreciation of property, plant and 9% - HERRENTE
equipment 38,623 27,881 - 9,010 75,514 54 75,568
(Reversal)/provision for inventory FELERERER
obsolescence (BE) /% (902) 274 (609) (105) (1,342) - (1,342)
Provision/(reversal) for impairment of & 5 K E s JE Yt 55 (&
trade and other receivables B/ (B@) 1,496 1,751 - (685) 2,562 - 2,562
Fair value gain on derivative financial T4 &@ T EATFEYNE
instruments — not settled - REE (4,661) (20,126) - - (24,787) - (04,787
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

5.2

Segment Information (Continueq)

Secondary reporting format — geographical

segments

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from

5 SBERGE
52 RBRERK — HESH

AEBEHERTE AKRERETEEAR

external customers located in the PRC and outside the PRC are BN INKREZE R ZIzZE - 250
presented as follows:
Micro Washing Raw
motors motors material Group
business business business Others Total
ZNCS
MEHRER RKKREEES R R Hth A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT AE¥TRT BETI
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TThF
+=ZA=+—A~
¥ E
Revenue from external customers 2R B /1 Bl 3% ] S 2R
in the PRC Y S & 2,027,556 912,658 6,029 637,703 3,583,946
Revenue from external customers 3 & 7 B 35 90 S 3K
outside the PRC TR 2 416,716 781,682 — 41,772 1,240,170
2,444.272 1,694,340 6,029 679,475 4,824,116
Micro Washing Raw
motors motors material Group
business business business Others Total
A%
WMEMER RHEMER R RCE 34 Hit &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EBTR EBTT EBTRT EETR EBTR
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-_ZT—ZTF
+=ZA=+—AR
IEFE
Revenue from external customers R & R B 3E A MR E
in the PRC Pz 3,745,254 1,498,884 5,988 758,900 6,009,026
Revenue from external customers & & B35 4h Ik
outside the PRC Pz 649,785 1,083,548 - 56,527 1,789,860
4,395,039 2,582,432 5,988 815,427 7,798,886

No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets is
prepared as substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in
the PRC, except for financial instruments and deferred income tax

assets.

Turnover represented revenue from external customers and is the
same as revenue in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GFEUBHRRME
5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SEEEE)
5.3 Information about a major customer 53 F—BXEEFZEH
Revenue of approximately HK$816,323,000 (2009: Uy 25 7R #)75 #5816,323,000C (ZE T AL G -
HK$534,374,000) is derived from a single customer, contributed to 75 #5534,374,0007T) RE —BEF + 5| A
the revenue of the operating segment of micro motors business EHEBRAMEBNEED BHRER -
and others business.
6 Leasehold Land And Land Use Rights 6 TMHELMRIMERE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights AEERBEEL R LFERAEZERS
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book AN EERERE  ERMFEI IO :
values are analysed as follows:
Group
xEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of FHELASN - LLOEB0FE 2
10 to 50 years HERHA 125,509 124,496
Group
xEHE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Opening net book amount FYIRE®FEE 124,496 127,436
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments & < 4% 4 70 & 7k 78 # (3,242) (2,923)
Exchange difference EHEE 4,255 (17)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 125,509 124,496

At 31 December 2010, leasehold land and land use rights with net
book value of approximately HK$60,429,000 (2009:
HK$84,026,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s
short-term bank borrowings (note 18).

R-ZZ—ZF+-A=+—8  EEFE
#) 78 #60,429000L(Z T TN F: B
84,026,0007T) 2 E Tt & T {F AR
EAAESEEBRRITER ZERFE
18) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRMRME

7 Property, Plant and Equipment

7 VE- -BERRE

(a) Group (@ A&EHEH
Electronic
Construction- Fixture and Plant and Motor and other
in-progress  Buildings furniture machinery vehicles equipment Total
BER E¥R
ERIR By RERGH 1] RE Hi &5 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETn BETT BETn E%TR BETT EETR
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENFE-A—H
Cost R 59,360 263,773 47,898 505,694 8,322 39,036 924,083
Accumulated depreciation e - (49,505) (19,355)  (259,543) (8,417) (20,918)  (352,738)
Net book amount EHFE 59,360 214,268 28,543 246,151 4,905 18,118 571,345
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZTZTNE+=A
=+—HIEEE
Opening net book amount FOREEFE 59,360 214,268 28,543 246,151 4,905 18,118 571,345
Additions wRE 58,577 3,812 6,877 143,495 2,638 9,725 225,124
Exchange difference EXRER 7 (33) (7) (65) - (12) (124)
Disposals HE (4,495) - 7 (14,528) (249) (1,955) (21,234)
Transfer R (49,738) 30,048 (15,962) 34,450 - 1,202 -
Depreciation nE - (12,630) (5,578) (47,077) (1,401) (8,882) (75,568)
Closing net book amount FREBFE 63,697 235,465 13,866 362,426 5,893 18,196 699,543
At 31 December 2009 RZZZNEF
+=ZA=+—-A
Cost A 63,697 272,063 62,153 650,122 10,228 41,360 1,099,623
Accumulated depreciation e - (36,598) (48,287) (287,696) (4,335) (23,164) (400,080
Net book amount REEE 63,697 235,465 13,866 362,426 5,893 18,196 699,543
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-ZT—T&+-A
=t-RLtEE
Opening net book amount FUERFE 63,697 235,465 13,866 362,426 5,893 18,196 699,543
Additions WNE 122,956 2,236 16,000 110,283 4,075 15,326 270,876
Exchange difference ERER 2,216 7,849 269 11,347 160 361 22,202
Disposals e (5,957) (264) (129) (17,544) (108) (1,655)  (25,657)
Transfer B (60,047) 12,033 473 47,184 — 357 —
Depreciation nE - (14,643) (9,127) (53,912) (1,941) (11,537)  (91,160)
Closing net book amount FREEFAE 122,865 242,676 21,352 459,784 8,079 21,048 875,804
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF
+-A=t+-8
Cost 2% 122,865 323,660 52,662 752,961 13,579 52,185 1,317,912
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (80,984) (81,3100  (298,177) (5,500) (31,137) (442,108
Net book amount REEE 122,865 242,676 21,352 459,784 8,079 21,048 875,804

Depreciation expense of HK$83,607,000 (2009:
HK$64,467,000) has been charged in cost of sales,
HK$95,000 (2009: HK$47,000) in selling and marketing costs
and HK$7,458,000 (2009: HK$11,054,000) in administrative
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

7

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)

At 31 December 2010, property, plant and equipment with
net book value of HK$97,891,000 (2009: HK$125,081,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank

7

hE - BERREE

(@ FEEBEE)
R-_ZT—ZTE+_A=+—H"  EHE
R B 5 #597,891,000 L (ZE T N4
5 1125,081,0007T) 2 W % - BB &

borrowings (note 18).

(b) Company

RECEASAEERHRITERZ
R (P 5E18) »

oy

(b) EAT

Electronic and
other equipment

EFRHEMEHE
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZEEZNF—HA—H
Cost B 7R 284
Accumulated depreciation REHE (197)
Net book amount BREVEE 87
Year ended 31 December 2009 HEZTZANF+A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 87
Depreciation e 43)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 44
At 31 December 2009 R_ZBENF+_HA=+—H
Cost B AR 284
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE (240)
Net book amount BREFE 44
VYear ended 31 December 2010 HE_Z-—ZHF+_A=+—HBHLLFE
Opening net book amount FHEREEE 44
Additions A= 14
Depreciation e (35)
Closing net book amount FIRREFE 23
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-—ZF+_HA=+—H
Cost B AR 299
Accumulated depreciation 2EHITE (276)
Net book amount BREF A 23
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

8 Goodwill 8 HE
Group
XEE
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZAF—HA—H
Cost and net book amount AR BREFE 22,410
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTZNF+-_A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHEREEE 22,410
Exchange difference EHES @)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 22,408
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE—ZF—H—H
Cost and net book amount AR BREFE 22,408
Year ended 31 December 2010 HEZZT-—TF+-_A=+—RHLFE
Opening net book amount FYERMEFE 22,408
Exchange difference ERER 780
Closing net book amount FREEFE 23,188
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H
Cost and net book amount AN K Bk TR B 23,188

The goodwill is attributable to the significant synergies expected to
arise after the Group’s acquisition of the non controlling interests of
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which is a cash-
generating units (“CGU”) in micro motor business segments located
in the PRC.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

8 Goodwill Continued) 8 ®™EE
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FREEFEZETEBEOT:
follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) EMER(FEEENE) 10% 10%
Growth rate (weighted average growth rate used to B E R (RBEHRM® ARIEE
extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period) R & i £ 2 M1 # F 1% & XK) 1% 1%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to MRE(ARREREEB 2B
the cash flow projections) A 8L 3R %) 15% 15%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on EEERBRATRRLEYMSER A
past performance and its expectations for the market development. AETEEENER - EERWRBUME
The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate BEBMS2RATHERE - IKRAZ
for the markets of micro motors business. The discount rates used BRIRE AW XY REMAE D BT
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant [2 B e
segments.
RERRERAT —EB—TFEFR 131
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132

Investments in Subsidiaries and Loan to a
Subsidiary

The details of the investments in subsidiaries and loan to a
subsidiary of the Company are as follows:

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

9 KMEBASKERERT—XK

Pt B 2 5]

THRARAMBARKRERERT —K

MBARZFFS:

(@ MEATRE

Company
FAT
2010 2009
—E-%f —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Investments in equity interests RiERE
— at cost, unlisted, exchanged at date — ZRXA(E « kLT RIREERER
of investment 4,500,000 4,500,000
— subsequent exchange difference — HERBEAZHIEB 2 E = E (K 324(0)
due to translation into presentation
currency (note 2.4(c)) 236,538 77176
Investments arising from share-based A% {5 X+ 32 A& 2 &)
payments (i) 6,553 4,048
Amounts due from subsidiaries (i) JFE Mg B 8 3 B 3R I (i) 363,349 182,825
5,106,440 4,764,049

(i) The amount represents share-based payments arising from
the grant of share options of the Company to employees of
the subsidiaries for their services provided to the subsidiaries.

(ii) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and with no fixed term of repayment, non-trade related
and not past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

9

Investments In Subsidiaries and Loan to a
Subsidiary (Continued)

(b)

Loan to a subsidiary

9 MBABRRERERF—XK
ftB AT (&

(b) ERF—FKHEBAT

Company
XAT
2010 2009
—E-%% —TENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Loans to a subsidiary BT —RWBAR 100,940 98,000

The loans to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest bearing,
denominated in HK$ and repayable on 28 December 2012.
The fair value of the loan to a subsidiary approximate its
carrying value, which is based on cash flow discounted using
a rate based on the borrowing rate of 3%, which has no
material difference to the market borrowing rate determined
by HIBOR plus appropriate credit rating.

BEXTF—RMBARAEER - 518
AEBEME WERZTE——F+=
AZ+N\BEZ -BEXTFT-—RHBQ
Al ATFEEAEEmERSE IR
BAERFEI% - BRI E BT
HoMBAXEBBRITAEREE
SMBAZEZEETIRETHTISE
BERTHBERER -

HREZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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Investments In Subsidiaries and Loan to a
Subsidiary (Continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are:

Place of incorporation and
operation/establishment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

ftB AT (&

EACEUNNE

Particulars of issued share

9 MBABRRERERF—XK

MEBRARR-_ZFT—TF+_A=t—HZ

Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities capital/registered capital Interest held
HERRIREE
R I B R EETRE
&% EEBERERN FEEH HREFZHE PRt R
Directly held:
HEEHH:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
liability company USD1 each
BEZERBV)ER AR KBRS - REER 10,0000% & B E E13E 7T 100%
BEREMERA ZERK
Indirectly held:
EEHE:
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Electronic and Electric”) (foreign investment trading of motors USD15,000,000
enterprises) and transformers
BLUTHESETERERAA PR AREEDA BHEREEEHURE FMER 100%
(TBEFERX] (OME 2 2%) JEE 28 15,000,000 7T
Foshan Welling Material Supply PRC, limited liability company Trading of raw Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. materials RMB20,000,000
BILTRBEMEHEBRAF FEAEREERAT B ERME ERiE=EN 100%
A R #20,000,0007T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (foreign investment trading of motors USD6,400,000
(“Welling Washer”) enterprises)
FLUTRHELERERREERLF HE - FREEAQA HEREEEH S ER 100%
(TEER D) (SNE ) 6,400,000% 7T
Guangdong Welling Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd (foreign investment trading of motors uSD48,810,000
(“Guandong Welling”) enterprises)
ERBEEHREEERAF hE - AREMERQA SLEREEEH A EA 100%
(TEREAED (SNERZ) 48,810,000%% 7T
Hefei Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd.* trading of motors RMB50,000,000
AEREEREEERAR" hE EREMERQA HEREEE AR 100%
A R #50,000,0007T
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Investments In Subsidiaries and Loan to a
Subsidiary (Continued)

Place of incorporation and
operation/establishment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

9 MBABRKRERERF—XK

ftB AT (&

Particulars of issued share

Name and kind of legal entity Principal activities  capital/registered capital Interest held
HMBRIREE
R I B R EETRE
£ EEBERERN FEEH HMEFZHE PRt
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Huaian Welling”) (foreign investment trading of motors USD5,000,000
enterprises)
HZBEBHRBEERDA PEAREEAR HEREEEHR EREEEN 100%
(TEZHE] (SNE 1 2£) 5,000,000% 7T
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 10 ordinary shares of 100%
company HK$1 each
HEBREEEFR AR EF BEREMERAA wEZER 100 B AR m (B 1T 100%
ZE B
Welling Macao Commercial Offshore Macao Special Administrative Offshore trading Registered Capital 100%
Limited Region, limited liability Macao Pataca 100,000
company
BERPIBE F R R ER DA SBPIRRIIT IR - BERXS #1 il & 7<% P9 #100,0007T 100%
BEREMERA
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Wuhu Welling”) (foreign investment trading of motors USD17,680,000
enterprises)
BEE (FO)) ERHEFRARF FEEREMELQA SLUENEEEHR ERIIE=ZN 100%
(TR E ] (SNE B 2) 17,680,000% T
* This subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 * HHBARREBE-—ZE—24+-_fF=+—

December 2010.

REZRERNF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRFRMEE
10 Investments in Associates 10 BtZEATIKXE
Group
P
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZEhEFE—-A—H -
Acquisition of associates g AN 202,158
Negative goodwill GRS 3,974
Share of associates’ post acquisition profit after tax 1 B & A &) U B £ 0 & Bl 12 518 834
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZENF+_A=+—H 206,966
At 1 January 2010 H-Z—TF— 206,966
Share of associates’ post acquisition profit after tax /i 5 & A & X B& ?é kil F’f‘ & FH 9,269
Exchange difference EHEZR 7,416
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—FF+-A=+—H 223,651
On 26 November 2008, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the RZZBZNF+—HZ+RB KARIMMHE

Company entered into a joint venture agreement in PRC (“PRC JV
Agreement”) and a share subscription agreement (“Subscription
Agreement”) in Hong Kong, through which the Group proposed to
acquire 49% minority interests in four PRC companies (collectively,
the “Target Companies” and the transaction as the “Acquisition”).

Before the Acquisition, the Target Companies were owned by a
third party independent to the Group (the “Domestic Vendor”). The
Target Companies are engaged in manufacturing of casting
products.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group paid a total amount of
approximately HK$82,463,000 in accordance with the PRC JV
Agreement and Subscription Agreement. However, as the
completion of the Acquisition was subject to the future fulfillment of
certain terms stated in the PRC JV Agreement by the Group and
the Domestic Vendor, the amount paid of HK$82,463,000 (note 13)
was recognised as prepayment for investments in associates in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2008.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010

2EMBREIRFPETLAE R ERE(F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

10

Investments in Associates (Continued) 10
The Acquisition was completed on 28 October 2009. The total
consideration of HK$202,158,000 was recognised as the cost for

the investments in associates, and the Group’s investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

as described in note 2.2(c).

The analysis of the negative goodwill and acquisition cost as at 28
October 2009, the acquisition date, are as follows:

BEATREE)
WHEER-—EBAFTASTNRTH -
7B #202,158,000 TT Z B R EEE R R &
ARBRERA  MARERBE Q2R
7 o DA 25 8 3R (R B 3E2.20) 5 ) 31
BE o

ERERBRBRAR-_ZEZAF AT
NBUBAED) 22T :

Fair value

~NEE

HK$'000

BEET T

Share of fair value of net assets acquired M EEFE 2 ATE 206,132

Negative goodwill =R (3,974)

Total purchase consideration LU EENRE 202,158
Representing: K&

— Consideration paid by cash —UReIHZRE 202,158

The summarised financial information of the Group’s principal RZZE—ZFFF+-_A=+—H0 FTEEHE

associates as at 31 December 2010, all of which are unlisted,
including the aggregated gross amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and profit, is as follows:

2HENF (2EHR/IELN) ZHMBER (B
REE  AE  RaERAEERR) SdmT

Place of Effective
incorporation/ interest
Name establishment Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit held
AL, Fit #%
Eg R 3L 4 Bh BE BfE W 25 FHE AWES
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETx
Shanxi Huaxiang
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC 1,177,669 715,351 709,400 20,032 49%
I ERIREFR A GRlEY
Linkgo-HK Limited Hong Kong 22,310 94 — 8,980 49%
EEMABRAA o

REZRERNF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRFRMEE
11 Available-For-Sale Financial Assets aHtHESMEE
Group
X&EH
HK$'000
BT I
At 1 January 2009 RZEZTNF—A—H —
Addition FE 28,393
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+=—A=+—H 28,393
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZEF—H—H 28,393
Exchange difference ERER 988
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—H 29,381

In April 2009, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Guangdong Welling entered into an investment agreement with
Midea and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“GD Midea”, a company of
which 42.49% interest is held by Midea) for the purpose of
incorporation of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. (the “Finance
Company”). The initial registered capital of the Finance Company is
RMB500 million which shall be contributed by each of Guangdong
Welling, Midea and GD Midea in a proportion of 5%, 55% and 40%,
respectively. The Finance Company shall provide a range of
financial services as approved by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”). Guangdong Welling has made capital
contribution of HK$28,393,000 (equivalent to RMB25,000,000) to
the Finance Company on 28 December 2009. The Finance
Company has commenced its operations from 22 November 2010.

At 31 December 2010, the Finance Company was only engaged in

attraction of deposits from Midea and its subsidiaries and
placement of short term deposits with domestic commercial banks.
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ERBEEHAEINRERENEERHER
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HRIM B W UEMR L =M EE
BERAB(HFH AR - BB AR ZHH
& A A A R #500,000,0000t © HER
BT ENRERENSELEASAILE
5% * 55% K40% ° Bf 7% A &) A 12 ff — R 5]
KRBT EEEELZES ((PERES])
HEZHBRE R-_TThE+-_A—+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
12 Inventories 12 B8
Group
xE&E
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Raw materials R4 311,644 219,867
Work-in-progress & 72,695 45,294
Finished goods (note (a)) SR (Bt 5 @) 1,554,566 404,031
1,938,905 669,192

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of goods sold amounted to HK$5,828,303,000 (2009:

HK$3,607,671,000).

During the year, the Group charged a provision for inventory of
HK$6,540,000 (2009: reversal of HK$1,342,000). The charge/
reversal has been included as an increase/reduction of cost of
goods sold in the consolidated income statement.

(@  As at 31 December 2010, the Group had finished goods (@
which were kept in stores at customers’ location amounted
to approximately HK$1,147,063,000 (2009: HK$333,224,000).
No sales have been recognised for these finished goods as
the risks and rewards have not been passed to the

customers.

SAAEEERAAR -

BRKA

WAREHER -

REZRERNF

[
Ll
|
A

7 & AR AN 7 %5,828,303,000 L (Z E T N,
B #3,607,671,000T) B HER A X I

RER - NEB Y 577 & B #75%6,540,000
TL(ZZTNF - # 0B ¥1,342,0007T) © X

HABEBEEN MO GARERZHE

R-Z—ZE+-_A=+—0 4%
EERERPH R A R K @A A K
1,147,063,000c(Z T T N F: B ¥
333,224,0007T,) ° £ 7 & b & B 3] R
EETEP MZSREARMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables

13 BESREMBUR

Group Company
*%E ¥ AL
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
R-B-—FT& RZZEZNE RZZETNE RIT-%BF RZZEENE
+ZA=+—-H +ZA=+-H —A—B +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BETT BETT EETR BB
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (&31)
Trade receivables (note (a)) B 5 MWK (P 3 () 885,933 471,640 407,876 - -
Less: provision for impairment B RERE
(note (c)) (Bt 3£ () (16,835) (23,359) (18,818) - -
Trade receivables — net BoRE — FE 869,098 448,287 389,058 — —
Notes receivable (notes (a),(d)) FEWZ &
(P 5E() ~ (d) 385,131 121,252 113,435 - —
Prepayments KN E 173,166 259,937 119,047 - -
Other receivables H o W R 195,221 97,640 92,747 1,302 1,335
Less: provision for impairment W H A MR
of other receivables AR E
(note (c)) (B 5 (c)) (461) (445) (89) - -
Prepaid value-added tax — net TEREER — FE
(note (¢)) (Tt E(e)) 116,355 35,186 39,042 - -
1,738,510 961,857 753,240 1,302 1,335
Less: non-current portion L FERVERE S
— Prepayment for investments in — BBEARIRE A (M
associates (note 10) #10) - - (82,469 - —
— Prepayment for property, plant ~ — FERYE BEKLHR
and equipment 18 (18,335) (3,816) (22,392) - -
1,720,175 958,041 648,385 1,302 1,335
As at 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009, S FEFT-A=T—B ZFTNF

T—AR=ZEEAF-A—RA &
REIZE SR EMBER R Z AT
RHEERE

the fair values of trade and other receivables of the Group and the
Company approximate their carrying amounts.

m o+
m o |
B
ﬁ-ﬁ-m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009,
other receivables of the Company are denominated in HK$. Trade
and other receivables other than prepayment of the Group are
denominated in the following currencies:

13 ESRHEMEBIKRE)
R_ZE—ZTF+_A=+—RH —ZTTNAF
+ZA=+-—BR=ZZFETAFE—A—H &K
NAElZ E UK A BETIE - AEE 2
BHREMBURTR BN RINATIEE

HI{E :

Group

x&EE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
NRZF—FF RZIZEZENF RZIZEZENF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BT T BETIT
RMB AR 1,130,952 421,816 143,807
usDh ETT 301,545 184,432 363,623
EUR BT 131,529 94,324 125,356
HK$ B 1,318 1,348 1,407
1,565,344 701,920 634,193

HREZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

13 BESREMEBKRRGE)

@  The majority of the Group’s export sales are on letter of credit @ AEBZEAOHEERBDAEHET
or documents against payment, or covered by customers’ NRREFNET IUNEFPZER
standby letters of credit or bank guarantees. The remaining ERABHRITERIERZ - HH 2
amounts are with credit terms of 90 days. As at 31 BMZEEHAIQOH R-ZE—ZTF+
December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009, ZRA=+—R8 ZETNF+=RA=
the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables and notes +—ARZZTETNE-—HA—HB B
receivable respectively are as follows: FEWH R ERERBE KRR DM

LUNNE

Group

AEH
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-ZE—FF E’\\:gqhﬁ RZZETNEF
+=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+— —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T BT T

Gross trade receivables: BESERREE:

Within 3 months =EANR 790,596 437,480 355,331
3 to 6 months == N@A 88,974 25,672 51,713
Over 6 months NE A E 6,363 8,488 832
885,933 471,640 407,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME
13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 13 ESRHEMERKRGE)
@  (continued) @) (&)
Group
F 3

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZB—FF RIZETNF KRZIZEZTIF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT PR oT PR FoT
(Restated) (Restated)
() ()

Notes receivable: FE W 1R
Within 3 months =EAUR 230,007 88,345 95,617
3 to 6 months =& XA 155,124 32,907 17,818
385,131 121,252 113,435
As at 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 1 January RZZE-—ZFF+_A=+—H ZZTIF
2009, the trade and other receivables that are neither past +—A=+—B8Ek=ZEZTNF— H B
due nor impaired are fully performing. FAEETERENE S K E A E W REH

BISETT -

(b)  Asat 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 1 January b RZF-FTF+-A=+—0 -=ZF
2009, the ageing analysis of the past due but not impaired ZhFEFT-_A=+—BE=-ZZNF
trade receivables were as follows: —A—H ES5RKFEBEERE

2B

Group

&
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
REZB—FF RZZETNFE RKRZIZEZTIF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT ok ok e
3 to 6 months =& XAA 68,753 233 31,166
Over 6 months 7 H LA E 262 1,385 100
69,015 1,618 31,266

RBEERERAT —E-ZEER 143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

13 BESREMEBWKRGE

(©) As at 31 December 2010, trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$26,322,000 (2009: HK$52,500,000; 2008:
HK$28,244,000) were potentially impaired. The provision in
relation thereto was approximately HK$17,296,000 (2009:
HK$23,798,000; 2008: HK$18,907,000) at 31 December
2010. The individual impaired receivables mainly relate to
past due receivables from customers. There is no recent
history of default for most of the customers, it was assessed
that a large portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

© MZE—ZFE+_A=+-—H EBH

To b JE W 3R 4978 1526,322,0007T (=
T T A F B 52,500,000 = F
T )\ 4F ¢ #028,244,0007T) B 1E R
B -RZE—ZEF+-A=+—AHZ
BB E X B 17,206,000 (ZZE F
L& ¢ B #23,798,0007C + —ZEE N
4 : 75 %18,907,0007T) » & B R (A FE
WHFZREFBHAEKHKIBEER -
ABHrBEFEPLTBEARTE B
ST KBRS E U R TE B S AT U o
It RUGR 2 BRERIA T ¢

Group
x&E
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZF—FF RZZETAEFE RZZEZNF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T
Within 3 months =18 AR - 19,958 6,965
3 to 6 months =Z=NEA 20,221 25,439 20,547
Over 6 months ~E A E 6,101 7108 732
26,322 52,500 28,244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(©

13 BESREMEBWKRGE

(Continued) © (%)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade B 5 FE W R I E th B MR ER 2 R (B B
receivables and other receivables are as follows: HEBmT
Group
FEE
2010 2009
—F—-FF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Beginning of the year F4 23,798 18,907
Provision for impairment ok (B B 10,068 15,755
Bad debts written off 352 B H5H (466) (176)
Provisions written back B O E (16,764) (13,193)
Exchange difference ERER 660 2,505
End of the year F 4R 17,296 23,798
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables gk bRz B EOREREDE
have been included in administrative expenses in the Afr & mER 21T BRI R
consolidated income statement (note 23). Amounts charged 23)c WIEHEI T e E B AINE £ - A
to the allowance account are generally written off when there AARBR 2B —MEME -
is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The provision written back represented the subsequent BROoBELRABKEN BT EER
collection of previously provided impaired amounts. EeR -
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not B REMBERR 2 EMERNTE
contain impaired assets. FEREBEEE -
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity o BELEHBENEARNIHEZIRITHA
periods within six months. The maximum exposure to credit HEER -RBEAHP2HEAREER
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of At ERERRZATFE K
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any EEYEFEETAERARERR -
collateral as security.
The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the e AEECHBEEHEDHEMM
State Tax Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers. R BE XN EREISER ([ER]) -
In accordance with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these BIEAEETEMEER ZEEE
VAT can be offset with the output VAT arising from the sales BT B R RSN EE A Y B (Y
in the future but are not refundable. The balances at 31 B OMAARE R-T—T&F.—
December 2010, 2009 and 2008 represented net input VAT SEHAER-TST \E+-—A=f—
ther o?sethlng the;u;pu.t VA; payable by the Group for the B 4 5 55 4 2 A £ W 4 P9 3t B 7 54
omestic sales made during the year. o 9
gmey 5 B 1 #2558 11 4 O TR O (Y
o
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME
14 Pledged Bank Deposits

15

14 ERBRITHER

Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance ETRITHERDIERREEREL 2 R1T
notes issued by the Group and these deposits will be released EAZBZER MZREERERELHZ
upon the maturity of the bank acceptance notes issued. These RITARBZED ARG - ZZDHEME
pledged bank deposits bear interest at bank saving rates of 1.91% THERBRITFRENE1.91% (ZZEN
per annum (2009: 1.98% per annum). All pledged bank deposits are F:FME1.98%)ETE - FIBEEEBRITHE

denominated in RMB.

HTAAREFHE °

Group
xEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Total pledged bank deposits BRI KRB 232,555 141,127
Less: Maturity period within 3 months (note 15) R =8 A LA B HA (BT 5E15) (114,555) (92,046)
Maturity period over 3 months and ZEAN EEBEILARNEAR
less than 9 months T HY 118,000 49,081

Cash And Cash Equivalents

15 IRERINELZEEY

Group Company
£ 10 eI
2010 2009 2010 2009

—%-%F —TThF -"B-BFE —TING
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFRT EMTT  BETFR  E%TR

Bank deposits and cashonhand BT R LRFHEER S 642,894 165,432 1,560 217
Pledged bank deposits with ZEALAREZEBE
maturity period within 3 months HIRITIF K
(note 14) (Fff 5E14) 114,555 92,046 - —
757,449 257,478 1,560 217
At 31 December 2010, cash at banks and pledged bank deposits RZF-—FF+_A=+t—H XxKEZ
with maturity period within 3 months of the Group in the total ROFRR=M@ARIH 2 EERRITHF
amount of HK$718,349,000 (2009: HK$244,618,000) were kept in KB EA B 718,349,000 (ZF T ALEF - 8
bank accounts of PRC banks of which the remittance of funds were #5244,618,0007T) * /315 UK 1E R Bl B8R 7T

subject to foreign exchange control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

15

16

(a)

Cash And Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 0.88% per annum

(2009: 1.25% per annum).

Share Capital and Share Options

Share capital

16

(a)

RERBEEEEBYM(E)
RITERZEBRFNEE088% (ZEZ N
& F R F1.25%) o

At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010

RZZEENF—A—H"
—EENEFE+ZA=1+—H
—F-TFFTZA=T—H

R A R B AR 4
g S
Authorised
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
EERA
SREEEYIT ZEER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$’000
M th 8 8
(FBO BT T
53
20,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of

HK$0.1 each
EETRHARRE
SEEEESITZEER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$'000
iz 17 £ B
(F&) PR T T
At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 M_ZEZNF—A—HK
ZZEhF+ZA=+—8 13,479,314 1,347,931
Issue of ordinary shares (i) BATERR() 600,000 60,000
Employee share option scheme EEBKRES
— proceeds from shares issued (ii) — IR 19 17 BT 15 3R IA (i) 11,250 1,125
At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZF+_-_A=+—H 14,090,564 1,409,056
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(0

On 29 March 2010, Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited
(“Midea (Cayman lIslands)”), the parent company of the
Company, entered into a placing agreement and subscription
agreement with a placing agent and the Company. Pursuant
to the placing agreement, Midea (Cayman Islands) agreed to
place, through the placing agent, 1,200,000,000 existing
shares of the Company to not less than six independent
investors at a price of HK$0.42 per share. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement, Midea (Cayman Islands)
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 600,000,000 shares of
the Company at a price of HK$0.42 per share. 600,000,000
new shares of the Company were issued for the subscription
on 9 April 2010 raising net proceeds of approximately
HK$245 million which were intended to be used for the
development of motor business of the Group and for general
working capital of the Company. The net price raised per
share was approximately HK$0.41. These shares ranked pari
passu with the then existing issued shares of the Company.

The share options exercised by a Director of the Company
and certain employees of the Group during the year, resulted
in 11,250,000 shares (note (b)) being issued at HK$0.157 per
share, yielding proceeds after transaction costs of
approximately HK$1,740,000. The weighted average closing
price of shares of the Company at the time of exercise of
share options was HK$0.39.
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16 BRARBREGE

(a)

B ()

U

WZZE—ZTF=ZA-+hB =K%
R(FSHB)ARLA(EN(HE
BE)NRARZHAR) Bl E R E
RAQRGI L EEHHERBERR
BRIEREHZ  EN(R=HE)RE
BBRERERETRRKMDEB042
T MTALRRNEBEIREERE
1,200,000,000/ R XA RIFE B D © 1B
BEREHRE ENHEESHE)BK
HREZRESR KM E0427T0 R ME
600,000,000/ &R A A iR 15 ° 2" 1 &
600,000,000 FTIR M ER=ZF —F
FOMANBET  UHRE B4
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16

(b)

Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

Share options

The Company adopted a share option scheme as approved by the
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 27 June 2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Company to
attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group and to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
participants. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include the Directors (including executive Directors and non-
executive Directors) or employees of the Group, consultants or
advisors of the Group, substantial shareholders or employees of
substantial shareholders of the Company, associates of Directors or
chief executives or substantial shareholders of the Company,
employees or directors of suppliers or customers of the Group,
discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by
employees or directors of the Group, as to be determined by the
board at its absolute discretion within the above categories.

The maximum numbers of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, but the Company may seek
approval of its shareholders in general meeting to refresh the 10%
limit under the Share Option Scheme.

16

(b)

AR EE)

R
ARARRAEARRABRRR BT =F
NAZTEARTZRRENAE LHE
2B E (kR &l)) -

BRESEZAN  TEARAWRS -
BLABAETHZ2EER/RRNEE 2 RK
BREERBERS)  XEARAGEAE
BRzhARNSEERIRE RE W
B WMk LB - BREAEZAE
REEERRAKEZEZT(BRHTE
ELRFATER)LEER  AEEZERHL
EEXEEBAL ARRZIEBRERIHERE
B ARAIZEF BRITBRABHEER
BRZEMBEA AREBHREFHEF
ZEREHEZ AEEREXEZTMARY
ZERERZEMNE2EIXSAN(ARESEH
ERALTHEZREBBERE)

BB AR AT 8 S AR R B R 4R 2 A f] E A R A
BETEIR T AR DB RRITEZ BE
BiOER ATETZESRNBEAHR
TREBARAERDEITRMDZ30%
5 R BT 8 R AR B E ) E At B B Gt 8
HTHAESTROZBRAEEITER 7
FERAIZENEBARATEEBARAR
BRERMAHEHEITRMG210% @ EX
REAARBERAG LS RKERMLE AE
FBRERT 8 T 210% R AR -

REZRERNF

[
A
|
A
_H:[
W
;f%

149



150

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

16

(b)

Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to each
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of such limit is
subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting of the
Company.

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme to Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is also the grantee of the
options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the Directors and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options will be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer for grant, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer
for grant, which must be a business day; and (jii) the nominal value
of the Company’s share.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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FEMBRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

On 30 July 2007, 9,500,000 share options were granted to certain
directors and employees at an exercise price of HK$0.78 per share.
The share options were exercisable immediately on the date of
grant and will expire on 29 July 2017.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 9
December 2008, the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme
was refreshed (“Refreshment”). Upon the approval of the
Refreshment, a maximum of 1,347,931,411 shares of the Company,
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of approval of the Refreshment, may be issued upon exercise
of the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and all other share option schemes of the Company.

On 9 January 2009, 375,000,000 share options were granted to
certain directors and employees at an exercise price of HK$0.157
per share subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25% each
and the achievement of the Company’s performance target as set
out in the note below and these options will expire on 31 March
2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, 11,250,000 share options
were exercised by certain Directors of the Company or employees
of the Group and 33,250,000 share options were lapsed upon
termination of employment of employees and directorship of
Directors. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was approximately HK$0.39. As at 31 December 2010, a
total of 315,000,000 share options granted to certain Directors of
the Company and employees of the Group were outstanding (2009:
359,500,000 share options).

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

. - , L =
16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 16 B 5 B R #E (&
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) FEREEE
Movements of the share options granted under the Share Option REBEZZ—ZTF+_A=+—HIEFER
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2010 were as follows: REBREASIRL CEREZHNAT
Options Options Closing price
Options held  exercised lapsed Options held at Exercise immediately
Date of at 1 January during the during the 31 December price per Exercisable before the
Name grant 2010 Year Year 2010 option period date of grant
RZE-F%&
-RA-8 R*EER REEERN R-F-TE £33
BEz TEZRER %%z +-B=+-B SHEKE RE A&
24 RHAH 324 1 BRE BAZBERE fiEE FTTEHR J& 3 W o (B
HKS$ HK$
Directors EE
Mr. Cai Qiwu BHEREE 09/01/2009 68,000,000 - - 68,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/08/2017 (B &%)
Mr. Jiang Deqing ZEELE 09/01/2009 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/03/2017 (Bt &%)
Mr. Qu Fei ERELE 09/01/2009 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000 0157 01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/03/2017 (Bt &E)
Mr. Gao Fazhong BEREE 09/01/2009 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 0157 01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/08/2017 (B &%)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung ~ #RER B 5E & 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0157 01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/08/2017 (B &%)
Ms. Chen Chunhua  BR&EEZ £ 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000 — - 5,000,000 0157  01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/03/2017 (Fff &)
Mr. Chan Wai Dune R 4 i 50 4 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 0.78  30/07/2007- 0.77
(resigned on (R=ZENE 29/07/2017
31 July 2009) +A=+—B&E) 09/01/2009 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - 0157 01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/08/2017 (B &%)
Ms. Tan Xuemei BT 09/01/2009 5,000,000  (1,250,000)  (3,750,000) - 0157 01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
(resigned on (R=Z—-ZF 31/03/2017 (B &%)
18 April 2010) mA+/\BET)
Employees 13-
In aggregate A 30/07/2007 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 0.78  30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 179,000,000  (10,000,000) (22,500,000) 146,500,000 0157  01/04/2010- (Note) 0.151
31/03/2017 (Bt &%)
Total ait 359,500,000  (11,250,000) (33,250,000) 315,000,000
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(b)

Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

Notes:

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The options
granted on 9 January 2009 shall be exercisable during the option period
subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25% each and the
achievement of the performance target of the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of the relevant period as set out below:

1. The first 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than 100% of the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from
discontinued business) (“Net Profit of 2008”);

2. The second 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 150% of the Net
Profit of 2008;

3. The third 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 200% of the Net
Profit of 2008; and

4. The remaining 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 280% of the Net
Profit of 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The fair value of the options granted on 9 January 2009 are
determined used the “Binomial Valuation model” (the “Model”). Key
assumptions of the Model are set out below:

Risk-free rate: 1.299%

Expected dividend yield: 3%

Expected volatility of the market price of 52.34%
the Company’s shares:

Expected option life: 8.2 years

Fair value as at the date of grant HK$25,229,000

(approximately):

The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the
directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of share options.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

2.
17 Other Reserves 17 Hibf#m
(@ Group (@ #FKRE
Statutory  General Enterprise Share
Share reserve  reserve  expansion option  Exchange Merger
premium fund fund fund  reserve reserve reserve Total
EE - g BRE

BRiER #HEEE BEEE  BRER HE EXRE AHRE &
HK$000 ~ HKS000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$O00 HK$000
BETT EETL RBTR  B%TR B%TR B¥Tr  B¥TI EETx

Note (c) Note (c) Note (c) Note (d)
Bate  MiEE M5 () M ()
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-BEAE-R-B&K 3336373 863 59192 60,367 7578 (1,354 (3234808 227,921
Employee share option scheme EEBEREE
— value of services provided - FRERBEE
(note 24(a) (B 524(a) - - - - 10,269 - ~ 10269
Currency translation differences EHELZER - - - - - 30 - 30
Transfer to statutory reserve EREAERE - 1,477 21,272 11,074 - - — 33823
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZBEAE
+ZRA=+-B&& 3,336,373 2,140 80,464 71,441 17,847 (1,324) (3,234,898) 272,043
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-F-FE-F—-B4EH 3,336,373 2,140 80,464 71,441 17,847 (1,324) (3,234,898) 272,043
Issue of ordinary shares BOERK
— proceeds from shares issued - ROBTHREFE 192,000 - - - - - - 192,000
— share issuance expenses - R ETRX (6,557) - - - - - - (6,557)
Employee share option scheme EEBEREE
— value of services provided - MRERBzER
(note 24(a)) (Ht5£24(a) - - - - 5,84 - = 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued - RPBIIMAEHE 615 - - - - - - 615
Currency translation differences EBERZR - - - - - 58,218 - 58,218
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETHE - 711 23,865 23,735 - = - 48,311
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-%F-F%

+ZRA=+-B&H 3,522,431 2,851 104,329 95,176 23,688 56,894 (3,234,898) 570,471

I
A
|
A
Wy
H
=

REZRERNF

155



156

17 Other Reserves (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

17 HibfEE(E

Company (b) EAT
Share Total
Share option Exchange other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Hib ke
BpEE BRERE ERkE g REEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETFT BETRT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2009 RZZSSNF—-A—B&EH 3,336,373 7,578 70,228 3,414,179 106,094 3,520,273
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (1,309) (1,309)
Employee share option scheme EERBRET
— value of services provided - FREREZEE
(note 24 (a)) (P 5£24(a) - 10,269 - 10,269 - 10,269
Currency translation differences EHERZR - - (554) (554) - (554)
Balances at 31 December 2009 RZZESNFE+ZA=+—HEH 3,336,373 17,847 69,674 3,423,894 104,785 3,528,679
Representing: BER
2009 proposed final dividend “ZTNFRARBRE 67,397
Others Hitr 37,388
Retained earnings at RZZBZNF+-ZA=+—-RHZ
31 December 2009 REEF 104,785
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF—-F—BH&#H 3,336,373 17,847 69,674 3,423,894 104,785 3,528,679
Profit for the year FEANE - - - - 90,577 90,577
Issue of ordinary shares BLEAR
— proceeds from shares issued — BIIROBIE 192,000 - - 192,000 = 192,000
— share issuance expenses - B BETHEZ (6,557) - - (6,557) - (6,557)
Employee share option scheme EERRETE
— value of services provided - MRERBZEE
(note 24(a) GERZT) = 5,841 — 5,841 - 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued - BRI BIMBRE 615 - - 615 - 615
Dividend relating to 2009 ZETNFERE - - - - (70,422) (70,422)
Currency translation differences EHERZE - - 178,292 178,292 - 178,292
Balances at 31 December 2010 RZE-TF+-A=+-HEH 3,522,431 23,688 247,966 3,794,085 124,940 3,919,025
Representing: HER
2010 proposed final dividend “ES-TEERRERE 112,725
Others Hit 12,215
Retained earnings at R-Z-ZF+-A=+—-RA2
31 December 2010 RBEF 124,940

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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GEMBHmRMEE

17 Other Reserves (Continued) 17 HibfEE(E)

(¢) The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow the laws  (¢) AR BEFE Z M B R R EEBFHE LR
and regulations of the PRC and their articles of association. These %ﬁ'%&ﬁ%Z@%ﬁ&%%°%%
subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory funds, WBARBRHETEEES  HAlA—
namely, general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, which BREREECEZRES  HEHKM
are appropriated from net profit after taxation but before dividend BERFREDIK 2GR FIRE o 5Z 47
distribution based on the local statutory accounts prepared in BEEPERECEBA 22T RA&A
accordance with accounting principles and relevant financial BB EEMGBRIEANEERES
regulations applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These W EREME AR AEGHMAERNZ10% D
PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its net REHBEES EZZREESEHESR
profit to the reserve fund until the balance of such fund has reached EadMEAZ0% AL - WERKAES
50% of its registered capital. Such appropriations are determined at HEEE - —REBESCETCEHEERI
the discretion of the directors. The general reserve fund can only be BT AERERFTEBIIGMER -
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
deficit or increase capital.

(d)  Merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration  (d) A HHEEHIRELREG TWRBEBFR A 2R B
paid for the acquisition under common control, and the aggregate EARRNBHEBEAETALREEKEWEB QG
nominal value of share capital/paid-up capital of the subsidiaries ZBRABRBAZAERE L EZ5E -
comprising the Group contributed by the owners of the Company.

18 Borrowings 18 &R

Group
AEH
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
MRZF—FF RIZETLF RZZEZNEF
+-—A=+—H +=-A=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BETT BT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E751) (E51)
Non-current FEENHA
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured & HJR 1765 — E K11 104,364 100,000 —
Current ENHA
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 52 HA3R 17 & 7k — £ K 1 190,346 — —
Short-term bank borrowings, secured 2 HIR1T1E K — AL IF 51,100 112,520 365,546
241,446 112,520 365,546
345,810 212,520 365,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE
18 Borrowings (Continued) 18 (&
At 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank borrowings were RZE—ZEF+TA=+—H KAEHR
repayable as follows: TERZERBERAT:
Group
¥
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZE—FF RZIZEZTNF RZZETIEF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&B31])
Within one year —F AR 241,446 112,520 365,546
1to 2 years —EWF 97,359 — —
2 to 3 years ME=F 7,005 100,000 —
345,810 212,520 365,546
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes AEBCZEFEARCNEZZGHERREL
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows: EMEBEBANAT
Group
F -
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZF—FF RIZZETNF RZIZTIEF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&E31))
Borrowings with fixed rate subject to  EEERZEFEEAE
repricing date as:
6 months or less NE AT - 37,345 -
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F - - 159,019
_ 37,345 159,019
Borrowings with floating rate as: FRER:
6 months or less NE AT 345,810 175,175 206,527
345,810 212,520 365,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GFEUBHRRME
18 Borrowings (Continued) 18 (&
The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings at RMERRATEER  LZEBERZER
the end of the reporting period were 1.90% per annum (2009: FHFER1.90% (ZZTNF : FHIFE2.51% -
2.51% per annum; 2008 7.02% per annum). ZETN\F  FHET7.02%) °
Property, plant and equipment with net book value of B8R M % (B 78 ¥597,891,000C (ZEE h &F:
HK$97,891,000 (2009: HK$125,081,000) and leasehold land and 7 #125,081,0007T) 2 W% - BB R &R 1B
land use rights with net book value of HK$60,429,000 (2009: LA X BR ™% B 75 #60,429,000L (ZZEE N,
HK$84,026,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s F ¢ 7 184,026,0007T) 2 HE L i & i
short-term bank borrowings (note 6 and note 7). F AT IE AN E R G HRITE 2 I8 (K
E I
The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings and the long- RHRTERERAERZEAEREAER
term borrowings approximate their fair values. The fair value of long- FEMEE RHERZAFEIIREMER
term borrowings is based on cash flows discounted using a rate MFE1E2% (ZEZTNF:163%: ZTEN
based on the borrowings rate of 1.52% (2009: 1.63%; 2008: 2.45%). F:245%) MBS REUBRTE - B
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the ZHEREBENTIE.SE -
following currencies.
Group
FEEH
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
MRZTB—FF HRIZZEThF RZZTETIEF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT VST VST
(Restated) (Restated)
(7)) (&73))
RMB AR - 37,346 295,320
HK$ B 160,000 160,000 60,000
UsbD ETT 185,810 15,174 10,226
345,810 212,520 365,546
BEZERERAT —ZE—ZTFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

19 Trade and Other Payables

19 BSREMEMNR

Group Company
xE EAF
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
R-ZT—FE RITTENFRZZETNF RIFT—FTE RZTTLF
+=A=+—8 +=-—A=+—H —A—8 +=HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BETT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5)
Trade payables (note (a)) B 5 & 5 (i 3 (a) 1,713,642 1,546,511 819,716 - -
Notes payable (notes (a),(b) MENZ#E (MfzE(@) - (b)) 1,356,659 399,994 369,342 - —
3,070,301 1,946,505 1,189,058 - -
Provision for staff welfare BTRF X

and bonus TEAT B 1S 136,571 79,884 44,824 - -
Accruals EREA 26,002 32,875 13,046 2,184 1,596
Advances from customers  FEU & FBE 10,342 12,882 6,136 - —
Others Hth 166,721 140,446 69,245 - 439
3,409,937 2,212,592 1,322,309 2,184 2,035
(@  The ageing analysis of the trade payables and notes payable @ AEE2ES5BRNRAERERNERZ

of the Group was as follows: BRE T :

Group

b
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
NRZF—FF RZIZEZTNF RZIZEZENF
+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E7))
Within 3 months =EANUR 2,303,927 1,435,133 777,250
3 to 6 months =E=XEA 756,607 506,069 398,774
Over 6 months NE A E 9,767 5,303 13,034
3,070,301 1,946,505 1,189,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

19 Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

19 BSREMEMNRGE

(o) The balance represents non-interest bearing bank ) BHEHATEEZLTFHBERTT
acceptance notes issued by the Group with maturity periods A EE  HEERAORAMEA o B
of less than nine months. As at 31 December 2010, certain —E2—ZEF+-A=+—H BTE
notes payable were pledged by bank deposits of NEBEUBITHERHOEE
approximately HK$232,555,000 (2009: HK$141,127,000) (note 232,555,000 (Z & T L F: B ¥
14). 141,127,0007T) 1F /3 # 48 (4 5£14) -

20 Derivative Financial Instruments 20 fTE&TH
Group
AEH
2010 2009
—EF-FF —ETNEF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE Bfs BE afE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BETT BT T BT T
Commodity future contracts (a) B EA 4 (@) 9,808 - 21,270 —
Foreign exchange forward SNEE IR B A 49 (b)
contracts (b) 16,114 - 4,438 902
25,922 - 25,708 902

(@  The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum @ AEBDI T 2B BB EA L
future contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and HES I RIEBEEE - ARG
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge LB e B o Y h
accounting. Changes in the fair value of the non-hedging SRR AL Y ATEE R
copper and aluminum future contracts amounting to MG 6370007 (M 5522) - ME R
approximately HK$6,637,000 (note 22) were credited to the A ARFECCEEAE: B
consolidated income statement during the year (2009: 46,520,0007T) ©
HK$46,520,000).

The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity R—T—TE+—A=+—Bthse
future contract as at 31 December 2010 were O EAN T EE AL SEA
HK$96,543,000 (2009: HK$198,455,000). ##06,643,0007L(— B ENLF  BH
198,455,0007T) °
BEERERAIE —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

20 Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 20 #14H €T A (Z)

(o)  The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward ) AEBECFTLZEINERAELH:
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies ENEBIERS  BETIHEER
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. ES et RIE - IEEH R ZINE
Changes in the fair value of non-hedging foreign exchange RHAHNZATFTEEHHEE
forward contracts amounting to approximately 35,865,0007T (fff 3£22) + R F WFA
HK$35,865,000 (note 22), were credited to the consolidated HAEKRTRCZEZELF: BE
income statement during the year (2009: HK$3,904,000). 3,904,0007T) °
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward RZEB-—ZF+_A=1+—RAU K%
foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2010 were BONEEHEHNZZEZLSEEA
HK$831,803,000 (2009: HK$574,874,000). 75 831,803,000 (ZEZE N F 8

#574,874,0007T) °

The carrying amounts of the commodity future contracts and ERBEANRIINERPEN ZREEH

foreign exchange forward contracts are the same as their fair HERAVEEE UNEEHETESRTIAY

values. The above transactions involving derivative financial R o ma{E B iy R AC SR ) SRT

instruments are with credit worthy banks with no recent history of 17 °

default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RBERAHZEREERRAITEEER

fair value of the derivative assets in the consolidated statement of REMBRARZATE-

financial position.

21 Deferred Income Tax — Group 21 BEFEH — AEH

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences BEEMGHERAEE /ﬁ/iiﬁET%Ei PN

under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the BEETAGERB s MEEBHGE

companies comprising the Group.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BEFSHEERBREMSHAGE 2O

tax liabilities is as follows: U

Group
xEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT R T IT
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFSMAE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —RTZEAN @R
released after more than 12 months BEIEFIRAR 23,077 6,317
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —RT+ZERAAER 2
released within 12 months BREFMBHAE 27,696 18,918
50,773 25,235
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFMBHEE
— Deferred income tax assets to be - BA +ZEARUE 2
recovered within 12 months BEEMBHEE 30,736 21,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

21 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

21 EEFREH — FEEH(Z

RAEE BRI BEKE B A K 35 45 82

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances Bl EEFHBEERBERFRAZE S
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T~
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFEHERE
Undistributed
profits of PRC Fair value
subsidiaries gain Total
hE B AT AR
Z R 5 ik F W 25 a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZENF—H—H 6,305 - 6,305
Charged to consolidated RiFEWFEERNA
income statement BTG 15,565 3,350 18,915
Exchange differences EHER 12 3 15
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=_A=+—H 21,882 3,353 25,235
Charged to consolidated RiralmEiA
income statement kR 23,817 401 24,218
Exchange differences ERER 1,194 126 1,320
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—H 46,893 3,880 50,773
REZRRERAT —E2-BEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRMRME

21 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued)

21 BEFEH — AEEH(E)

Deferred income tax assets: BEFSHEE
Impairment Fair value Unpaid
losses losses  accruals Total
AFHE KRHFER
WEEE K518 EH &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETRT B¥TT BETR
At 1 January 2009 RZEZTNF—A—H 3,598 4,289 — 7,887
Credited/(charged) to RERB W ER
consolidated A (GNRR)
income statement 928 (4,150) 17,181 13,959
Exchange differences EHER — (3) 13 10
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBTNF
+=ZA=+—8 4,526 136 17,194 21,856
Credited/(charged) to RERBE R TR
consolidated A (GRR)
income statement 239 (137) 7,833 7,935
Exchange differences EHEZR 163 1 781 945
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
+=—A=+—8 4,928 = 25,808 30,736

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$852,000 (2009: Nil) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$3,410,000 (2009: Nil) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. Such losses will

expire in 2015.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of all subsidiaries.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

22 Other Gains — Net

22 Hihyrss — B8

2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETR BB IT
Government grants (i) BT #8 B () 7,768 5,272
Derivative financial instruments: MESBIA:
— fair value gain on commodity future contracts — T A B BIEH P EHEIEZ
not qualified for hedge accounting: mmEBEAEHNAFEKZE:
not settled (note 20(a)) REEE (M 5E20(@) 9,808 21,253
— fair value (loss)/gain on commodity future — TR EEREEHRETEREZ
contracts not qualified for hedge accounting: PR EAHNRNFEERER),
settled (note 20(a)) Wz B4 E (T RE20(@) (3,171) 25,267
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward — TR EERIEEPEHEEZ
contracts not qualified for hedge accounting: EHIIEEHANRTFERRZ:
not settled (note 20(b)) 7 4 & (Fff 5220(0)) 16,114 3,534
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward — TR EEARIFEPGHREZ
contracts not qualified for hedge accounting: RHNINESEHNLRAFERS:
settled (note 20(b)) B % & (M 520(b) 19,751 370
Exchange loss [ i &5 18 (14,361) (5,498)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME BEX
equipment HEEE (12,169) (12,760)
Penalty income B A 4,920 1,408
Others HAh 363 871
29,023 39,717
()  The amount represents the subsidy granted by and received () FBHESITRIKENFEE MK TEEE

from local government authorities in the PRC for

encouragement of export.

HREZRERDF

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRMRME

23 Expenses by Nature

23 RUHEHPEZRX

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing BIELTHEERKAR  HERTISHEEK
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: ARITBRAIHASZ SO T:

2010 2009

—EF-FF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BET T

Cost of inventories recognised as expense
(note 12)

Employee benefit expenses (note 24(a))

Depreciation (note 7)

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use
rights (note 6)

(Reversal)/provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables — net (note 13(c))

Provision/(reversal) for inventory obsolescence
(note 12)

Operating leases rental for land and buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

Research and development costs

R AR 2 FEKA (K :E12)

5,828,303 3,607,671
& 818 7 7 2 (Bt 52 24(a)) 665,078 414145
& (HFE7) 91,160 75,568
A& 1t J 1 b {55 PR R 4 55 (P 7E6)

3,242 2,923
B 5 R E b UGB (B ),

5 88 (FF 3%13(0) (6,696) 2,562
GEREREREHERE(BE)

(Bt 3E12) 6,540 (1,342)
T REFREHERS 5,015 2,765
% BRI BN & 2,945 3,171
o 7% & Fi 2 K AR 16,640 417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

24 Employee Benefit Expenses

(a)

24 EERFIFARZ

2010 2009

—E—-FF —ETNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Wages and salaries TERES 552,261 330,674
Pension costs (i) RARE BN () 25,429 21,617
Medical benefits BEREA 14,128 12,312
Share options granted to Directors and employees BTEEkEBZBRE 5,841 10,269
Other allowances and benefits Hfth 2 AL K 5E F 67,419 39,273
665,078 414145

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group companies (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Legislation. The contributions from each of the employers
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participate in the local retirement schemes of the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group is currently
required to make a monthly contribution equivalent to 15% to
28% of the monthly salaries in respect of its full-time and
temporary employees.

HREZRERDF

AEBCLZHEESEELMAERE
eitEl - RIEMESFE - SEIE
TEEAREEX) R HE S BRI
MAESEGHRTE SABEBA
BZ5%ERFTEIRK - BEXRES
FEBEZHR LR AT AAE1,0007T
HEHAaREHER -

RNARRFPBE 2B AR 2
BB RAKESEE - RIZEHE
Bl ARERBETSAINEERE
B K BGRB8 A #15% £28% 2

o
/N

I
A
|
A
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H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUBHRFTME
24 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 24 EERBAMAZE)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ emoluments b) EERESHREEAENE
The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December EEREBET—ZTFF+A=+—HL
2010 is set out below: FREz2MeEHINET:
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses benefits (i) scheme Total
Bih&stElz
EEgs we & BfEEAl EbEH() X EAN B85
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT BETr BETRT BETR EETRT BETR
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cai Qiwu EEHR LA - 1,020 2,297 1,140 8 4,465
Mr. Jiang Deqjing =EBRE - 427 1,478 604 8 2,517
Mr. Qu Fei BRITE - 353 504 369 8 1,234
Mr. Gao Fazhong BB - 352 563 419 8 1,342
Ms. Yuan Liqun Rt - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei RERSLE - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang EREREEE - - - - - -
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Ms. Tan Xuemei (i B E L2 L i) - - - 84 - 84
Independent non-executive % 3L JE 1T
Directors EE
Mr. Tan Jinsong (i) B S 5 A (i) 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEABEA 180 - - 84 - 264
Ms. Chen Chunhua RELL LT 180 - - 84 - 264
540 2,152 4,842 2,784 32 10,350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBHmRME
24 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 24 EERAMAZE)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ emoluments b) EEREREBAENME(E)
(Continued)
The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December EEREBEZEENF+_A=F+—HL
2009 is set out below: FEZMEHNET
Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary Other pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  benefits (i) scheme Total
RiREtEz
EENY e e BYIETEAL EAb i FI() & E 4t &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BB BETT BB
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cai Qiwu BEHREE - 817 1,362 2,024 8 4,211
Mr. Jiang Deqjing EZEERE - 371 454 1,071 8 1,904
Mr. Qu Fei BREE - 305 227 655 8 1,195
Mr. Gao Fazhong MEBELE — 304 193 744 8 1,249
Ms. Yuan Liqun RABLL - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei REREE - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang BEREEE - . - - - —
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Ms. Tan Xuemei (i 8 T 2 (ii) - - - 149 — 149
Independent non-executive BIFEHITES
Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong (i) 2 SR A i) 75 - - - - 75
Mr. Lam Ming Yung N 180 - - 149 - 329
Ms. Chen Chunhua MEEZ T 180 — — 149 — 329
Mr. Chan Wai Dune (iv) FER 4 3% 5T HE (iv) 105 — — — — 105
540 1,797 2,236 4,941 32 9,546
()  Other benefits include leave pay and share based payments. () EmeMNeEeEHmRARUEKSDX
R o
(i) Ms. Tan Xuemei resigned on 18 April 2010. iy BEWHLTIRZZE—ZFNA+NH
BT -
(i)~ Mr. Tan Jinsong was appointed on 1 August 2009. iy BYNREER_ZZTNFNA—BE
ZE-
(v)  Mr. Chan Wai Dune resigned on 31 July 2009. vy B@EmTER_ZTENFLA=T
—HEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUBHRFTME

24 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 24 EERBAMAZE)

(c) Five highest paid individuals ) ABAmREHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AREBEFNAEZZEFMALTERE=2(=
Group for the year include three directors (2009: three) whose TENF ZRHEF HPLBEIHINEX
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The D - ANEEENBTMEZ(ZEZEHE:
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2009: two) individuals ME)ATZEEmT:

170

during the year are as follows:

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share EX¥Fe - FEEEMN - BRE-

options, other allowances and Efh 2B R B =

benefits in kind 4,444 3,711
Contribution to pension schemes BRIREFHEI MR 55 51
4,499 3,762

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands

BN & 48 5l

MeBUATHERNZ ABBT
Number of individuals
AB

2010 2009
—g-%5 —TThS

HK$1,000,000-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,500,000

7 #1,000,0007T -5 #2,000,0007T 1 1
7 #2,000,0017T 7% #3,500,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRMEE
25 Finance Costs — Net 25 MERE — iFHE
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Interest expense FEHAZ (30,895) (22,869)
Exchange gain/(loss) — net fEH Wz (BB — F8 349 (166)
Finance cost A& AR (30,546) (23,035)
Finance income — interest income on BEWRA —RITERZ
bank deposit F B WA 4,307 4,341
Net finance costs Rl E R AR 5 (26,239) (18,694)

26

Income Tax Expense
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did not
have any assessable profit in Hong Kong.

Group companies registered in the PRC are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”). According to the new CIT effective
from 1 January 2008, all PRC enterprises are subject to a standard
enterprise income tax rate of 25%, except for enterprises under
specific preferential policies and provisions as discussed as follows.

Welling Washer has been eligible to the “2-year-exemption and
3-year-50%-deduction” CIT incentive starting from year 2006. The
applicable preferential tax rate after reduction is 12.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: 12.5%).

Guangdong Welling and Wuhu Welling have been eligible to high
technology enterprises CIT incentive starting from year 2008 to year
2010. The applicable preferential tax rate of high technology
enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009:15%)).

26

FriR Bl x
Pl A7 S [0 B 4 3 4 £ {6 SR B -
WOl S R E B FIB BB -

AEBEPHEIMO AR BAMBTRELE
PIER(IEXMEH]) - REB-FTN
F-A—BREMNFTHIECERSH
BREEXBRATHANFEEEREXR
BEI BT B AR A B M26% 1T E R
ECIRER RS

REARH ST FREATLEMS
MEBREBERINFRER="FNREDZ
E+#gzcER BEZT—TF+=A
=+—ALEFE -MRERREBEZAAES
REAE125% (ZFZTNF 12.5%) °

ERRERENRER _STNFE-ZT
—THEMEANCEMGREREETESR
MBRCEBENER BHEZT-—TF+
ZA=t+—BLEFE aRECEZATA
BEBERAEIE% (ZEEAE 15%) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEUBHRFTME
26 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 26 FiEBiEARZE)
Electronic and Electric has been eligible to the transit period CIT BFEREDER 57|\éf ¥BEHMLEMS
rate as foreign-investment enterprise. The applicable preferential HEER BE-_Z—ZF+_A=1+—
tax rate after reduction is 25% for the year ended 31 December AIEFE - IRMRE ?5: ZAAEEBRER
2010 (2009: 12.5%). Electronic and Electric has been eligible to the 25% (_ = NF 12 5%) A :? THEF
“2-year-exemption and 3-year-50%-deduction” CIT incentive ZZETNFH EFERCEAFTLEMN
starting from year 2005 to year 2009. B %R RENE T i RER=FHNRED
ZHTBRZERE -
Huaian Welling has been eligible to the “2-year-exemption and ELBRER_ZTTRAFE_ZTZTNFHEE
3-year-50%-deduction” CIT incentive starting from year 2005 to ENTCEMSHEREREIRFRER=
year 2009. The applicable tax rate is 25% for the year ended 31 FHREABDZAETHRAZER - HEZT
December 2010 (2009: 12.5%). —THEFA=ZFT—RLEFE TAME
B25% (ZZENF 1 125%)
2010 2009
—E—-FF —TEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT R T oT
Current tax BNV ER%L 18
— PRC corporate income tax — PR EREH 111,908 64,303
Deferred income tax EEFTEHIE
— Deferred income tax assets recognised (note 21) — EHERIELEMESHEEE
(Pt #E21) (7,935) (13,959)
— Deferred income tax liabilities recognised (note 21) — ERRELFEH B ARG
(B E21) 24,218 18,915
16,283 4,956
Income tax expense FrigBim = 128,191 69,259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

26 Income Tax Expense (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the entities as follows:

26

FieHmAXZE
REEMKRBRAIMB R ERRBEER
HEB MEFHOREMFAECERTIE
ZEEWMT:

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Profit before taxation BB ATFE 660,421 423,034
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate LR BEE B Ro5% At E

of 25% (2009: 25%) (ZZEENF : 25%) 165,105 105,759
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates EABERER 2 (41,144) (35,588)
Income not subject to tax BARM Z WA (3,364) (5,148)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 1~ & 1 < B X 6,742 4,236
Tax loss not recognised as deferred income tax FAI ERIELEFEHBEEEZ

assets MIBEE 852 —
Income tax expense s 128,191 69,259

PRC corporate income tax is provided for on 25% (2009: 25%) of
the profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting purpose,
adjusted for those items, which are not assessable or deductible for
the PRC corporate income tax purpose.

Profits tax for other locations has not been provided as the Group
did not have any assessable profits in those locations.

27 Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

approximately HK$90,577,000 (2009: loss HK$1,309,000).

27

HR B O RT S B D R R BLE T B % 2 R
H225% (ZEENF :25%) 518 - W E
AP BECEMEBREMNRB SR 2
ZEHEELHAEE TARE -

A P AN B2 [ 1A LA 3 B I S AE {R] B AR A A
B U EEHRR S 2 NS BB

FATHBAEBGEFE
HAKRAYBRE 2 ADA GEHA B

F B 49 & 78 #90,577,000C (Z BT N
E5 18 78 #1,309,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

=iz & 7

BEX
GREXRBANTDRFEMNBERAFAD#
TERRZMBEFHEGE -

28 Earnings Per Share 28

(a) Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

2010
—®2-%8% —TIAF

RRARGER ARG

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the

Company (HK$’000) FEFBEGEE T 532,230 353,775
Weighted average number of ordinary shares MAEERELRAFN 2

for the purposes of basic earnings per share LR IR T B

(000 shares) (F 1) 13,922,606 13,479,314
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREXRRAFGEW) 3.82 2.62

e
BREFERNIVEREDEITERRZM
BEFOBELABMAE  XREE®AA
BECHEEBRR ARRZBEHEE
BA AR B 2 BB - pLEB AT
FOEFHERRBRFEREINRBBEGUERE
R ETZROBBZFAE  EXFEZ
BROBEEREBRERTEMDETZ
BOBECFHELE -

(b) Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive
potential ordinary shares of the Company are performance-based
share options. For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been issued based
on the attainment of the performance target at the end of the year.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

2010 2009
—E-FF ZTETNF
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the NARER AN
Company (HK$'000) FENBBE T T 532,230 353,775
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RAESREREN 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per share LR hNRE T B
(000 shares) (Fm&) 13,922,606 13,479,314
Adjustments for share options (000 shares) HEREED 2 A FR) 152,500 85,343
14,075,106 13,564,657
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERZF B 3.78 2.61
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

29 Dividends 29 g2
2010 2009
—E—-FF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Proposed final dividend, of HK0.8 cent EEANAREEREBRCSE

(2009: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share W(ZZEZNF: 0551 112,725 67,397

At a meeting held on 21 March 2011, the Directors proposed a final RZZE——F=ZA-+—BH81728%
dividend of HK0.8 cent per ordinary share (2009: HKO.5 cent). This EFRERTRAPR TR ERR.8E
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these (ZZEZNF: 058 - LIEEZREAL
consolidated financial statements. REZSHFREMBRRARMR BESRE

REZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE
30 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 30 ZABRERERME
Cash Flows
(a) Recondiliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from (@) HIFFTEHMATABELLEEL ZHSHE
operations: =
2010 2009
—B-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Profit before income tax 0B P 45 %t 5 FE 660,421 423,034
Adjustments for: R
— Depreciation — e 91,160 75,568
— Amortisation of leasehold land and — FAE T e T AR S
land use rights 3,242 2,923
— Loss on disposals of property, —HEYE BEXE
plant and equipment REBE 12,169 12,760
— Share-based payment expenses — URHE T HEX 5,841 10,269
— Share of profits of associates — {h B & A aE B (9,269) (4,808)
— Interest income — FBEW A (4,307) (4,341)
— Interest expense — F BRI X 30,895 22,869
Changes in working capital: EEEZLEY:
— Inventories -FE (1,269,713) (425,304)
— Derivative financial instruments —ITEe®mI A (1,116) (55,441)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5K H ek (746,433) (309,656)
— Due from related companies — FEU R A F) RIE 249,290 (43,424)
— Trade and other payables — BHRHEMERMK 1,197,345 890,283
— Due to related companies — FER AR KIA 416,972 (14,021)
— Exchange differences of working capital — &B8E&¢REHERE - 178
Cash generated from operations KREEEXZRE 636,497 580,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

30 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 30 ZEHERERMIE)

(b)

31

Cash Flows (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of (b)) REABELAREXRT LEVE BER
o
AX

property, plant and equipment comprise: BRI IERRE
2010 2009
—E—-FF —ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ok v
Net book value disposed (note 7) HEZEEFAECTED 25,657 21,234
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMELRHEBIE
plant and equipment (note 22) (B 5E22) (12,169) (12,760)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment RS E 13,488 8,474
Contingent Liabilities 31 HABRE
Save as the financial guarantees discussed in note 33, as at 31 BRH IS momEERN  RZE—F
December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company did not ERZZFTZAFFTA=T—H AEEK

have any material contingent liabilities.

ARRHMEEMERKARAE -

HREZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

32 Commitments

(@) Capital commitments

32 *&iE
(@) BERKIE

(b)

Group
3
2010 2009
—F-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Contracted but not provided for ERTA B RE
— purchases of property, plant and equipment —BEVE BERRKE 116,102 35,396
— purchase of leasehold land and land use right —BEHETHR
& 3 i AR 23,655 —
139,757 35,396

The Company does not have any capital commitment as at 31

December 2010 and 2009.

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Group under

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(b) HBEHERIE

RoE-EER-FENFH- A=A
AR AR A (7 B AR -

AEBERBENAIBE 2 KLLHEEMR KK
R 2 &IEMERIALELT

Group
FEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Not later than one year TiEBE—F 1,974 1,580
Later than one year and not later than five years BE—FETBBRT 403 1,120
2,377 2,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

32 Commitments (Continued) 32 EEE
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (b) FEEHEEEE)
The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Company AR ER IR O] BUSE 2 48 & T & M A R 2R
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: EzHEEERBEBELOT
Company
AAT
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not later than one year TR —F 799 959
Later than one year and not later than five years BE—FETHBBART - 799
799 1,758
33 Financial Guarantees 33 REEER

The Group and the controlling shareholder of the associates has
guaranteed the drawn components of certain bank loans of the
associates as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. Under the terms of
the financial guarantee contract, the Group and the controlling
shareholder of the associates will make payments to reimburse the
lenders upon failure of the guaranteed associates to make

payments when the bank loans are due.

Terms and face values of the liabilities guaranteed were as follows:

REBREBERARERBRR BB E QRN
TE-EER_ETAF+_A=1+—H
ZETRITEEFER REBREERSE
WGEH > AEBERBE QA ERBRREH]
P YE RE 2 AR EOEE RITE R HUE R

- BEHEEMERA-

EREBZGRLEENT:

Group

AEH
2010 2009
—E-%BF —TINF
Year of maturity Face value Face value
FI A £ R H{E HE
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BETIT

Drawn bank term loans of the associates, 1 year to 6 years
denominated in RMB

BEARRBRRITBEHER  AARKIE —ERF 304,971 27,825

The method used in determining the fair value of these guarantees
has been disclosed in note 2.22. The fair value of these guarantees

is nominal.

AREEERZAFETZERME222
NKE - BRZATFERMIRE -

REZRERNF

I
A
|
A
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H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

34

(a)

Related Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been
eliminated on consolidation. Transactions between the Group and
other related parties during the year are summarised below:

Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed by the respective

parties:

34 BABAXS

ARAFEEWNBRARBZRSE
BAEE AEEREMBBEABRFRFRNZ
RGBT

(@) HEABAZXS

AT Ty BB )T I &
RETZRS

N o=l S

RIR7TEERE Z %

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Sales to related parties: R EE G HE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — ARAERDGIEH 3,379,252 1,970,176
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder — HEKRERARZ
of the ultimate holding company FEREIES 615,788 534,635
— Controlled by a close family member of — HEEERAA
the ultimate holding company’s FERR Z2EFIES
substantial shareholder — 44
3,995,040 2,504,855
Purchases from related parties: 1) 88 Bk 05 R
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — B AT A R 13,297 4,451
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of — BEREERARZ
the ultimate holding company FEREE %'J 255,878 159,678
— Controlled by a close family member — BHRZIERAR
of the ultimate holding company’s FER®E 2
substantial shareholder 2,335 161
271,510 164,290
Receives logistics services from related parties: a) B8 Bt 5 M B 7 AR A
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — F A AR AR A R 39 2,111
Receives interest income on A 1 %% A R EER LA
deposits at an average rate of FFE0.36% 1
0.36% per annum (2009: nil) (ZZEThE:T)
from the Finance Company: 7R B WA
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — M AR AR A R 39 —
Capital investment to a related party: MBS IEL 2 ERKE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — AREER ARG IZE - 28,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

34 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 34 BBBEXS(E)
(b) Key management compensation b) FEZEHAENE
Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT EEET T
Salaries and other employee benefits FekEMEERF 11,160 6,658
Share-based payments AR 2 i 4,190 6,459
15,350 13,117
(c) Balances with related companies (c) HEABATZ4%6:
Group
FEE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
NREZB—FF R-_ZTThFE R-ZTTNF
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H” —A—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
()  Due from related companies: ()  FEUREEH A F] KB
— Controlled by the ultimate — HEEER
holding company NaE] 331,222 488,374 429,423
— Controlled by a substantial — BEEERQFZ
shareholder of the ultimate FEREES
holding company 36,482 129,174 145,033
— Controlled by a close family — BAERKERAR
member of the ultimate FEREZ
holding company’s AT LI
substantial shareholder 886 332 —
368,590 617,880 574,456

HREZRERAR —Z—ZFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBRERME
34 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c)

Balances with related companies (Continued)

34 BABEL RS (E
(c) EMBASZERE

Group
.3 4
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZB—FF RZITTNF RZTTIF
+=A=+—-8 +=-A=+-—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71)) (Z71)
(i)  Due to related companies: iy  FEREEARHIE:
— Controlled by the ultimate — BEREER
holding company NGIEE 411,240 4127 11,406
— Controlled by a substantial — BAHRRERARZ
shareholder of the ultimate TERREH
holding company 70,389 63,518 66,148
— Controlled by a close family member of — BREERAT
the ultimate holding company’s TERRZ
substantial shareholder iR 3,391 403 4,515
485,020 68,048 82,069

The balances due from/to related companies are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. No
balance due from related companies is past due or impaired.

FEUFET R R AR A BRIAAREFIE -
¥ REER REEARERKEER -#
BN AR A SREHERE -

Group
&
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
RZB—8F RZITTNF RZZETIF
+=A=+—-HB +=ZA=+-—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT BETT
(i) Short-term deposits in the iy REBRAZ
Finance Company: ySRERER
— Controlled by the ultimate — BREER
holding company DA R 136,754 — —

Save as discussed in note 9, the Company does not have other
balances with related companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

35

36

Ultimate Holding Company 35 mBRERAT

The Directors regard Midea, a company incorporated in the PRC, BEERENRARIMKILZAR) AR

as being the ultimate holding company. S /NI

Events After the Reporting Period 36 #“HHBEEIE

On 15 December 2010, Welling Washer, a wholly-owned subsidiary RZE—ZTF+A+HAB  ARE2&H

of the Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement with £ BOE AR E LR ERT &SN

85 /N K 8 IR 19 B R A 7 (Wuxi Little Swan Co., Ltd.) a related KIEBRMBERARF LB D EZERGZE - U

company, to acquire 100% equity interest in #E45 /N K #E ZEENE 28 W& REARET5000,0007T HHER B

AR A7F] (Wuxi Little Swan Huayin Flectrical Appliances Co., Ltd.) #788,900,0007T) 45 i 85 /N RS FEENE 2

(“Huayin”) at a cash consideration of RMB75 million (equivalent to BRATI00%IRE - ZIBKRELE RN T —

approximately HK$88.9 million). This acquisition was completed on —F—A+tHZEK-

17 January 2011.

Upon completion of the acquisition, Huayin has become a wholly- WHEEIBTKE  ZNEXAEEARFZE

owned subsidiary of the Group. BWEB AT °

Purchase consideration: W (B HK$’'000
BT T

— Cash paid —BffRE 88,905

As of the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company were still assessing the
accounting implication of the transaction to the consolidated
financial statements.

RBBZEFREMBHRREM ARFAE
ENEFZZIFIEGEAMBERRNES

-
REZRERNIT —Z2-ZFFH
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EAFEMBREE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HL=EE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E—FF —_TThF —TIZT)\F —ZITTLF —TIETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BA¥TT BT BETIT ABAETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%) (&7) (E7)
Audited Audited Audited Unaudited Unaudited
HEE BEZ BEZ REEZ  RAEEZ
Results E 3§+
Revenue I &= 7,798,886 4,824,116 5,193,278 4,644,992 3,192,733
Profit attributable to the owners 2 %A A
of the Company JE 16 T 532,230 353,775 196,877 224,385 58,686
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 6,255,645 3,684,858 2,578,806 4,209,514 4,970,632
Total liabilities FN=Ni (4,347,879) (2,550,142)  (1,808,164) (3,936,258) (4,929,422)
Total equity G g k] 1,907,766 1,134,716 770,642 273,256 41,210

(i) The financial summary are restated for the classification of term
loans and the decognition of bank accepted bills. Details refer to
note 2.1.2 of the consolidated financial statements.
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